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Report of the Directors

The Directors submit their report to the shareholders, together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 3| March 2007

RESULTS

The financial statements for the year ended 3! March
2007 are set out 1 detaill on pages 5 to S8 A review
of the Waterford Wedgwood Groupss business is set
out In the Waterford Wedgwood plc accounts for
the year A summary of the results of the Group

15 as follows

Royal Doulton 1s engaged i the manufacture
distribution and sale of prestige and premium
branded ceramic and glassware products in the
gifoware collectible and tabletop markets lts principal
brands arc Royal Doutton, Minton and Reyal Albert
I has retal concession and wholesale selling
operations throughout the developed world its
primary markets being the UK, Canada. Australia

12 months to Japan and the United States %t has distnbutton
31 March 2007 companies in each of these markets
£ Mils
Rosenthal is 2 premium ceramics manufacturer based
Revenue 4371 in Germany Rosenthal manufactures, markets and
distributes luxury porcefain giftware and tableware

Operating loss before exceptonal items (43) The Group s interest in Rosenthal AG was 89 8% at

Excepvonal items ©8) 31 March 2007 The Group also distributes crystal

—_— and other products In certain world markets

Cperating loss 5N
Finance income and costs The Companys principal subsidiary companies as

Interest recewvable and similar ncome 04 at 31 March 2007 are sel out in note 31 to the

Interest payable and similar charges before excepuonal tems (17 8) financial staternents
Loss before income tax {225

Income tax expense 02) FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS
Loss for the year {(227) Future developments and prospects are outhned

— in the Waterford Wedgwood Group Charrmans

{Lass)/profit aterbutable to izdtcgle; Fiijec:twes csjt.atl-.ements cc;m?mfiﬁ within

- Equity holders of the company {22 8) atertor =dgwood pICs accounts for he year

d 31 March 2007
— Minorny interests Ot ended 31 March 20
(227) BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Translation of overseas subsidiaries totaling £2 3
million have increased the reserves during the year

The Directors of the Company at 31 March 2007
were

Peter John Goutandris (Chairman)
Moira Gavin®*
Wayne Nutbeen®

No intenm dvidend was paid in the financial year Lady O Reilly
ended 31 March 2007 The Directors do not propose F Adan Wedgwood
to pay a final dvidend Lord Wedgwood*

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company 1s an intermediate holding company
Dunng the year to 31 March 2007 the Company
managed the Wedgwood Royal Doulton and

Rosenthal brands

Wedgwood comprises the manufacture distrbution
and retaiing of high quality bone china and
earthenware tableware and giftware under the
Wedgwood brand together with qualty earthenware
tableware by Johnson Brothers (iIncluding the
Franciscan brand) Masons lronstone fine tableware
and giftware and Coalport bone china giftware

Waterford Wedgwood UK ple

Company Secretary
Patnck | Dowling

*Executve Directors

DIRECTORS (EXCEPT FOR DIRECTORS OF
WATERFORD WEDGWOOD PLC)

Moira Gavin 15 Chief Executive of Wedgwood and she
has a service contract that can be terminated by one
year's notice Wayne Nutbeen 15 Chief Executive of
Royal Doulton and he has a service contract that can
be terminated by one year's notice
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Report of the Directors

Description of shares

P] Goufandns and Lady O Reilly retire by rotauon at
the Annual General Mecting in accordance with the
Articles of Assocration and being eligible will offer
themselves for re-election

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS — SHARE CAPITAL

The interests of the Directors {except for Directors
of Waterford Wedgwood plc) and ther mmediate
familics in the share capital of Waterford Wedgwood
ple are set out below

Number of stock unns

31 March 2006 31 March 2007

stock units 200 200

stock units - -

Waterford Wedgwood plc stock units each compnise
one Waterford Wedgwood plc ordinary share of
€006 and one non-votng income share of Stglp

Iin Waterford Wedgwood UK plc

DIRECTORS’ OPTIONS

Details of executive share options granted in
accordance with the rutes of the WW Group
Schemes, held by the Directors {except for Directors
of Waterford Wedgwood ple) in the share capital of
Waterford Wedgwood plc are set out below

Weighted average

31 March 2006 31 March 2007 exercise pnce
t5 307984 15307 984 stg 53p
14,501,632 14501 632 stgdlp

Qutstanding options are exercsable on dates
between 2007 and 2015

The market price at the year end date was 5tg4 42p
The highest share price duning the year was Stgd 46p
and the lowest Stg2 28p

DIRECTORS’ CONTRACTS

Other than service contracts there have been no
contracts or arrangements with the Company or any
subsidiary dunng the financial year or between 31
March 2007 and 29 July 2007 n which a Director
of the Company was materizlly nterested and which
was significant in relation to the Company s business

INSURANCE OF OFFICERS

Duning the ycar to 31 March 2007 the Company
maintained an Insurance of Officers against habilities
to the Company and 1ts subsidianes

DIRECTQORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RELATION TO
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Durectors are responsible for preparing the
annual report and the Group financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Unien and for preparing the parent
Company financial statements in accordance with
apphcable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accountng Pracuce)

The Directors are responsible for preparing financial

statements for each financial year which give a true

and far view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted

by the European Umion of the state of affairs of the

Group and of the profit or loss of the Group and a

true and fair view in accordance with United Kingdom

Generally Accepted Accounting Practice of the state

of affairs of the Company for that pened In preparing

those financial statements the Directors are

required to

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently

+ make judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent

+ state whether the Group financial statements
comply with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union and with regard to the parent Company
financial statements whether applicable accounting
standards have been followed subsect 1o any
materia! depariures disclased and explained
in the financal statements, and

+ prepare the financial statements on the going
concern basis unless it 1s Inappropriate to presume
that the Group will continue in business

The Directors confirm that they have complied
with the above requirements in preparing the
financial statements

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper
accounting records that disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any ume the financial posiion of the
Company and the Group and to enable them to
ensure that the Group financial statements comply
with the Companies Act 1985 and the parent
Company financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 1985 They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the preventon and detection of fraud and
other rrregularites




STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO

AUDITORS

So far as each of the Directors i office at the date of

approvat of these financial statements are aware

* there Is no relevant audit information of which the
Company s auditors are unaware and

* they have taken all the steps that they ought to
have taken as Directors in order to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the Companys auditors are
aware of that information

SHARE CAPITAL

All of the Company’s ordinary shares of 25p each
which carry the right to vote at genaral meetings of
the Company are held by Waterford Wedgwood plc
At 3] March 2007 the 1ssued share capital of the
Company comprised |81 631 769 ordinary shares
and 5454 084 984 income shares During the year
there was a bonus issue of | 003 946,503 income
shares

RESEARCH AND PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT

The Group maintains design and development
departments in 1ts main manufaciuring divisions
Expenditure on design and development in the year
amounted to £3 7 mithon and related mainly 1o the
development of new processes and manufacturing
technologies

EMPLOYMENT POLICIES

The Directors remain committed to providing the
conditions best suited to encourage the personal
invoivernent of all employees in the future development
of the business This involves open and regular
communication with all employees the provision

of training and development opportunities and

profit sharing and employee share schemes Several
employee share schemes operate within the Group
and involve a significant number of employees

The Group's continuous improvement Initiatives
are important {eatures (n improving the quality of
working Iife

With regard to the employment of disabled people
the Group works in close co-operation with local
disablement resettlement officers to recruit and train
disabled employees and to provide whenever possible
career development for thase whose health no longer
allows thern ta continue in thetr normal occupation

HEALTH, SAFETY AND THE ENYIRONMENT

The Group pursues an acuive policy of providing safe
systems of work and high standards of environmentat
management.

Regular meetings of the Group s health and safety
committees have been held

Waterford Wedgwood UK plc

The Group's pelicies and procedures have achieved
compliance with fegal obligations

CHARITABLE AND POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS
The Group donated approsimately £193,000 for
charntable purposes during the year

The Group made no political contributions

EVENTS SINCE THE YEAR END

There have been no significant cvents affecung the
Group since the year end other than those set out In
nete | to the financal statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group recognises the mportance of an effective
financial nsk management programme The key
objectives and policies of the Group in relaton to
financial nsk management including the use of hedging
and the exposure of the Group to ¢redit hquidity
interest rate and foreign currency risks are set out

In note 24 to the financial statements

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group 1s committed to good Corporate
Governance and supports the principles set out In
the Cormmbined Code As an intermediate holding
Cempany, the Group 1s part of the governance
procedures established by WW Group The WwW
Group annual report and financial statements
descnibe how the main and supporting principles
set out in the Combined Code have been appiied

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REFORTING
STANDARDS

The results for 2007 and 2006 have been prepared in
accordance with the Group s accounting palicies under
International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS)

AUDITORS

A resolution to re appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers
as auditors to the Company will be proposed at the
Annual General Meeting

GOING CONCERN

After making appropnate enquiries and on the basis
of current financial projections and faalies avalable,
the Directors have a reasonable expectauon that
the Group has adequate resources to continue
operations for the foreseeable future and have
therefore prepared the financiat statements on

a going cancern basis
i— ‘
-

By order of the Board
Patrick j Dowling

Company Secretary
2% July 2007
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of

Waterford Wedgwood UK. plc

We have audited the Group and parent Company financial
statements {the ’ financial statements ) of Waterford Wedgwood
UK ple for the year ended 31 March 2007 which comprise the
Consofidated Income Statement, the Consolidated and Parent
Company Balance Sheets the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
the Consohdated Statement of Recognised Incaome and Expense
and the related notes These financial statements have been
prepared under the accounting policies set out therein

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the annual report and

the Group financiat statements in accordance with appheable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by

the European Union, and for preparing the parent Company financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and Unrted Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice) are set out In the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities

Qur responsibility 15 to audit the financial statements in accordance with
relevant legal and regulatory requirements and Internaucnal Standards
on Auditing (UK and Ireland) This report ncluding the opinion has
been prepared for and only for the Company's members as a body In
accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and for no
other purpose We do not, In giving this opinion accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom
this report 13 shown or into whose hands it may come save where
expressly agreed by our pnor cansent in writing

We report 1o you our optnion as to whether the financial statements
give a tree and fair view and whether the financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Compames Act 1985 We
also report to you whether in our opinion the information given in the
Report of the Directors 1s consistent with the financial statemnents

In addition we report to you If in our opinon the Company has not kept
proper accounung records f we have not recenved all the information
and explanations we require for our audd, or if information speciied

by law regarding Directors remuneration and other transactions is

not disclosed

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and consider
whether it 15 consistent with the audited financial statements The other
information comprises only the Report of the Directors We consider
the implcations for our report f we becorne aware of any apparent
musstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements
Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information

BASIS OF AUDIT OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards

on Auditing (UK and lreland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board An
audit includes examination on a test basis of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements i also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the
Directors in the preparation of the financial statements and of whether
the accounting policies are appropnate to the Group's and Companys
arcumstances consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit s¢ as 1o obtain all the nformation
and explanations which we considered necessary in order 1o provide us
with sufficient ewidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial
statements are free from materal misstatement, whether caused by fraud
or other irregulanity or error In forming our opinion we alse evaluated
the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial
statements

OPINION

In Qur opinion

» the Group finangial statements give a true and far view, n
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the Eurcpean Unien of the
state of the Group s affars as at 31 March 2007 and of 1ts loss and
cash flows for the year then ended

+ the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985

+ the parent Company financial statements give a true and fair view in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice of the state of the parent Companys affairs as at 31
March 2007

+ the parent Company financtal statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985, and

+ the information given in the Report of the Directors

1s consisteng with the finagcial statements
/MW&W&:F;J

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Bublin

29 July 2007



Group accounting policies under IFRS

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are set
out below These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consclidated financial statements of Waterford Wedgwooed U X plc
have been prepared in accordance with EU adopted International
Finanaial Reportng Standards (IFRS) and IFRIC interpretations endorsed
by the European Union (EU) and with those parts of the Companies
Acts applicable to companics reporting under IFRS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS

requires the use of certain cnical accounting assurnptions It also
requires management to exerase its judgment in the process of applying
the Group's accounting policies The areas requinng a higher degree of
Judgment or complexiy or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consalidated financial statements, relate primarily to
accounting for inventory retirement benefit obligations and indefinite

life intangible assets and are doecumented in the relevant notes

HISTORICAL COST CONVENTION

The consoldated financial statements which are presented in Sterling
millions to one deamal place, have been prepared under the historical
cost convention except for measurement at fair value of dervative
financiab instruments

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings Subsidiary undertakings
are included in the consohdated financial statements from the date on
which control over the operating and financial policies 1s obtained and
cease to be consolidated from the date on which control 1s transferred
out of the Group Control exists when the Company has the power
directly or indrectly to govern the financial and operating polices of an
entity so as to obtan economic benefits from its activities The existence
and effect of potential voung rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered in determining the existence or otherwise of
control Allintra-group balances and transactions including unrealised
profits ansing from intra-group transactions are eliminated on
consohdation Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with policies adopted by the
Group

SEGMENT REPORTING
A business segment 1s a group of assets and operations engaged In
providing products that are subject to nisks and returns that are different
from those of other business segments A geographic segment 15 engaged
in providing products within 2 particular economic environment that 1s
subject 16 risks and returns that are different from those of segments
operating in other economic environments The Group s primary format
for segment reporting is business segments and the secondary format s
geographic segments This 1s reflected by the Group’s management and

Waterford Wedgwood UK. pic

organisational structure and the Group s internal financial reporting
systems The Group s subsidiaries operate In two business segments
Ceramics Group and Other The Group's subsidiaries operate in five
geographic segments UK Europe excluding the UK North America
Far East and the rest of the world

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Revenue comprises the far value of the consideration receved or
receivable for the sale of goods or services supphed by the Group in the
ordinary course of business to external customers for goods and
services suppled, exclusive of trade and volume discounts sales rebates
and sales taxes Revenue and other income is recognised as follows

(1) Sale of goods — wholesale

Sales of goods are recognised when a Group entity has delivered

the products, the significant risks and rewards of ownership have

passed to the customer and the collectibility of the related recewable

15 reasonably assured

(v) Sale of goods — retail sales through owned stores concessions and outlets
Sales of goods are recognised when a Group entity sells a product to the
consumer net of sales taxes discounts and returns

(i) Retadl sales through the internet and mail order catalogue

Sales of goods are recognised upon shipment of the product to the
consumer net of sales taxes discounts and returns

{v) Royolty mcome

Royalty income 1s recognised on an accruals basis in accordance with the
substance of the relevant agreements

{(v) Interest income

Interest income Is accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effectve interest rate over the period of
expected maturity

{wi) Property vansacuons

Reverue from sale of property plant and equipment Is recognised where
there 15 an unconditional and rrevocable contract for sale

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

The financial statements of each of the Group s entities are measured
using the currency that reflects the prmary economic environment In
which the entity operates (‘the functiona! currency’} The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Sterling which ts the Companys
funcuonal and presentation currency Transactions in foreign currencies
are recorded at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction
Monetary assets and lablities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency at the rate of exchange at the
balance sheet date

All translation differences are taken to the consolidated income
statement with the exception of differences on forergn currency
borrowings that provide an effective hedge against a net invesiment

in a forergn entity The effective porirons are taken directly o equity
together with the exchange difference on the net investment in the
foreign enuty until the disposal of the net investment, at which tme they
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Group accounting policies under IFRS

are recognised in the consohidated income statement. Any ineffectveness
15 taken directly to the income statement

On consolidation the results and cash flows of subsidiary undertakings,
whose functional currency 1s not Sterling are translated into Sterling at
average exchange rates for the year and the related balance sheets have
been translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date
Transtation differences ansing on translation of the results of non-Sterling
subsidiary undertalings at average rates, and on the restatement of the
opening net assets at closing rates are dealt within a separate foroign
currency translation reserve within equity net of differences on related
currency borrowings designated as hedges All other translation
differences are taken to the income statement

The cumulative currency transtation differences ansing prior to the IFRS
transition date (! April 2004) have been set to zero for the purposes of
ascertaining the gain or loss on disposal of a non-Sterling subsidiary
undertaking subsequent to | Aprii 2004

INCOME TAX

Current tox

Current tax represents the expected tax payable (or recoverable)

on the taxable profit or loss for the year using tax rates enacted or
substantvely enacted at the balance sheet date and taking into account
any adjustments arising from prior years

Taxable profit differs from the net profit as reported in the income
statement because it excludes items of Income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes iterns that
are not taxable or deductibte  Current tax for the current and prior
periods 15 to the extent unpaid recognised as a liability If the amount
already paid in respect of current and prior periods exceeds the amount
payable the excess is recognised as an asset

Deferred mncome tax

Deferred income tax assets/habilives are provided using the hability
method on all temporary differences apart from initial recognibon
exernplions between the carrying amounts of assets and labiles for
financial reporting purposes and thesr tax bases Specifically a deferred
tax asset Is recognised for the carry-forward of unused tax losses and
unused tax credits only to the extent that it 1s probable that future
taxable profit will be avallable against which the unused 1ax iosses and
unused tax credits can be utilised Deferred income tax assets and
labilites are not subject to discounting and are measured at the tax rates
that are expected o apply in the year when the asset is realised or the
liabilty settled based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted
or substantrvely enacted by the balance sheet date

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets 1s reviewed at

each bafance sheet date and reduced 1o the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be avarable to allow all or part
of the deferred income tax asset to be uilised

Deferred tax 15 not recogrised on the initial recogrition of goodwill or
the imitial recogniion of an asset or hability in a transaction which 1s not
a business combination and which at the time of the transacuion affects
nerther accounuing profit nor taxable profit

In accordance with 1AS 12, Income Taxes deferred income tax assets
or habihiies are not recogrised for temporary differences associated with
mvestrnents in subsidiaries to the extent that the uming of the reversal 15

continued

controlled by the parent Company and it 15 probable that reversal will
not accur i the foresceable future

Deferred tax income or expense 15 reported in the iIncome statement Jf
1 relates to items that are reported i the income statement. For items

that are recognised In equity, the related deferred tax s also recognised

n equity

DIVIDENDS

Final dmidends are recognised as a liability when the sharchalders nght
to receive the payment is established by approval at the Annual General
Meeting

Interim dnadends are recognised in the Group's financial statements on
a cash-paid basis

SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary and income shares are classified as equity Costs directly
attributable to the 1ssue of new equty shares or options are shown In
equity as a deduction

RESEARCH EXPENDITURE
Expenditure on research 1s charged to the iIncome statement in the year
i which 1t is incurred

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

The purchase method of accounting 15 employed by the Group n
accounting for the acquisiion of subsidiary undertakings The Group
has availed of the exemption under IFRS | “First-time Adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards” whereby business
combinations prior to the transition date of | April 2004 are not
restated IFRS 3 Business Combinations’ has been apphed with effect
from the transition date of | April 2004 and goodwill amortisaticn
ceased from that date

The cost of a business combination s measured as the aggregate of
the fair value at the date of exchange of assets gven labiltes incurred
or assumed and equity instruments issued n exchange for control
together with any directly atiributable expense In the case of business
combinations, the assets and labiliies are measured at ther provisional
fair values at the date of acquisiion Adjustments to provisional vatues
allocated to assets and habiities are made within twelve months of
the acquisition date and reflected as a restaternent of the acquistion
balance sheet.

GOODWILL

Geodwill ansing in respect of acquisiuons completed prior to | April
2004 ( transiion date’ ) 15 included at s carrying value as recorded
under UK GAAP In line with the provisions apphcable to a first-ime
adopter under IFRS the accounting treatment of business combinations
undertaken prior 10 the transition date has not been reconsidered in
preparing the opening }FRS batance sheet as at 1 Apnl 2004 and goodwill
amortisation has ceased with effect from the transition date Goodwaill
written off to reserves under UK GAAP prior to | lanuary 1998 has
not been renstated and 15 not included in determining any subsequent
profit or loss on disposal of a subsidiary undertaking

Goodwill en acquisitions is inttially measured at cost being the excess of
the cost of the business combinatron over the acquirer’s interest in the
net farr vatue of the idenufiable assets habiliies and contingent liabiliies



Group accounting policies under IFRS continued

Following initsal recognition, goodwill 1s measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses Goodwill 1s reviewed for imparrment
annually or more frequently f events or changes in arcumstances,
indicate that the carrying value may be impared

As at the acquisition date any goodwill acquired 15 allocated to cach of
the cash-generating units expected to benefit from the combination's
synergies Impairment 1s determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit 1o which the geodwill relates Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit s less than the carrying
amount, an iImpairment loss 15 recogrised

Where goodwill forms part of a cash generating unit and part of the
operation within that unit 1s disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of 1s included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or toss of the disposal Goodwill
disposad of in this circumstance 15 measured on the basis of the relative
values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash
generaung unit retasned

INTANGIBLE ASSETS OTHER THAN GOODWILL

An intangible asset 1s recognised to the exient that it 1s probable that the
expected future economic benefits attributable to the asset will flow to
the Group and that it can be measured reliably

(a) Trademarks and brands

Tradermarks and brands acquired separately are recognised at cost
and ntangible assets acawred in the course of a business combination
are recogrised at far vaiue being therr deemed cost at the date of
acquistion Following imital recognition trademarks and brands, which
have a finite Ife are carried at cost less any accumulated amorusation
and accumulated impairment losses

The useful lives appled are
Trademarks 20 years
Brands 20 years

(b) Computer software

Acquired computer software lricences are recognised on the basis of the
costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software These
costs are amorused over ther esumated useful lives of four 1o six years
Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software
programmes are recognised as an expense as Incurred

The amortisation of intangible assets 15 calculated to write off the
carrying value of intangible assets over their useful hives, on a straight-lne
basis on the assumption of zero residual value

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

Assets that have an indefinite useful hfe are not subject 10 amortisation
and they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there 1s an
indication that the asset may be imparred Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
N arcumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable

The impairment loss recognised i1s the amount by which the assets
carmying amount exceeds its recoverable amount The recoverable
armount 15 the higher of an asset s fair value less costs 1o sefl and value
n use

Waterford Wedgwood UK plc

For the purposes of assessing impairment assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash
generating units) Where an asset does not gencrate cash flows that are
independent from other assets the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit 1o which the asset betongs If an
impairment loss 1s recognised for a cash generating unit, it is allocated
to reduce the carrying amount of the assets of the unit in the

following order

(1) first, to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated 10 the
cash generating unit, and

{n) then to the other asscts of the unit pro-rata an the basis of the
carrying amount of each asset i the unit

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets which comprise primarily deposits and recewvables are
inrtially recorded at fair value and subsequently measured at amortused
cost using the effective interest rate less provision for impairment
Financial assets are reviewed for imparment annually or more frequently
If events, or changes in crcumstances, indicate that the carrying value may
be impaired

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property plant and equipment are stated at cost or deemed cost, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses The Group's properties
in the United Kingdom were revalued 1o far value in 1997 and are
measured on the basis of deemed cost being the revalued amount at
the date of revaluation less accumulated depreciation up to the date

of transition {| April 2004)

Property plant and equipment excluding free-hold land are depreciated
over their estimated useful economic lives on a straight-line basis at the
following Ives

Freehold buridings
Leasehold buildings
Plant and equipment

25 to 50 years
Period of the lease
4 to 30 years

The residual value and useful economic ives of property plant and
equipment are reviewed and adjusted if necessary at each balance
sheet date

The carrying values of the Group s property plant and equipment are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there 1s any
indication of impairment. An impairment loss 1s recogrised through the
income statement whenever the carrying value of an asset or its cash
generating unit, exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
of an asset 1s the higher of its farr value less costs to sell and value in use
In assessing value in use the esumated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks speaific to

the asset

Subsequent expenditure relating to an existing asset 1s included n an
asset s camrysng value or recognised as a separate asset as appropnrate
only when 1t 1s probable that future economic benefits assoctated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the replaced itern can
be measured reliably All other repar and maintenance costs are
charged to the income statement during the financtal period n

which they are incurred
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Group accounting policies under IFRS

The profit or loss on the disposal of an asset is calkculated as the
difference between the net sale proceeds and the net book value and
15 included 1n the income statement in the year the item s sold

NOM-CURRENT ASSEYTS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
MNon-current assets are classified as held for sale if ther ¢arrying

value will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use This condition 1s met if the sale 1s highly probable,

the asset 15 available for mmediate sale in ts present conditon and
management 15 commutied to the salc which should be expected to
qualify for recogriion as a compleied sale within one year from the
date of classification Non-current assets classified as held for sale

are measured at the lower of carrying value and fair value less

costs of disposal

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

A discontinued operation 15 a component of an enuity that either has
been disposed of or that is classified as held for sale and (a) represents 2
separate major line of business or geographical area of operations {b) 13
part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations or {c} 15 & subsichary
acquired exclusively with a view tc resale

CAPITAL AND REVENUE GRANTS

Capital grants are recognised within the financial statements, only when
there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received Capnal
grants are recogmised as Income over the periods necessary to match
themn with the related costs which they are intended to compensate

on a systematic basis

Revenue grants that become receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already ncurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financral
support 1o the Group with no further refated costs, shall be recognised
as income of the penod in which it becomes recevable

{NVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net reahsable value

Cost 15 based on the weighted average cost formula In the case of
finished goods and work in progress manufactured by the Group cost
compnises the cost of direct materals, direct labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overhead based on normal operating capacity In the case
of other inventories cost 1s ascertaned by reference to purchase price
plus freight and duty where appropriate

Net realisable value 15 the estimated selling price 1n the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs to compleuon and estimated costs
necessary to make the sale

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade and other recenables are recognised inimially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortused cost using the effective interest
method less provision for impairment A provision for impairment of
trade and other recevables 1s established when there s objectve
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the recevable The amount of the
provision 15 the difference between the carrying amount and the present
value of future cash flows Bad debts are written off when identified

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and short-term deposits tn the balance sheet comprise cash at

continued

bank and in hand and short-term deposits Bank overdrafis that are
repayable on demand and form part of the Groups cash management
are included as a component of cash and cash equwalents for the
purpose of the statement of cash flows

BORROWINGS

All loans and borrowings are imually recorded at far value of the
consideration reccived net of transaction costs associated with the
borrowing After iniial recogmitton interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost employing the effectve
interest rate method Amortised cost s calculated by taking nte account
any 1ssuc costs and any discount or premium on settlement. Gains and
losses are recognised in the income statement when the labilites are
derecognised as well as through the use of the effective interest rate
method Costs incurred in relation to makewhcle payments are
recognised In the Incorme statement in the year in which they are
ncurred

Termination costs are charged in the iIncome statement in the year in
which they are incurred

FINANCING COSTS
Financing costs comprise interest on borrowings interest component of
finance leases bank charges and amortised debt 1ssue costs

Interest payab'e on borrowings and the interest expense ¢component

of finance lease payments is calculated using the effective interest rate
method Interest recevable on funds invested 1s calculated on an accruals
basis using the effective rate method

LEASES

Where property plant and equipment is financed by leasing
arrangements which transfers substantually all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership (“finance leases ) they are recognised at the
inception of the lease at the far value of the leased asset or if lower,
the present values of the mnimum lease payments The corresponding
obhgations are shown in the balance sheet as finance lease obligations

Where the Group has entered into lease arrangements on land and
bulldings the lease payments are allocated between land and buldings
and each Is assessed separately to determine whether it1s a finance or
operating lease

Depreciation on property plant and equipment s calculated in order
to write-off the amounts recognised over the shorter of the estmated
useful economig fives of the indwdual assets or the terms of the ease
The finance charge 15 allocated to each period during the lease term so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the hability

Profits or losses realsed on sale and leaseback transactions are deferred
to the balance sheet and are amortised through the tincome statement
over the life of the related finance lease

When the unavoidable costis of meeung obligations under a leasehotd
property contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be
recerved under it the lease obligaton 15 defined as onerous and the
present abligation under the lease is recogrised and measured as a
provision Provision is made for management s best estimate of the net
outgongs through to the termination of the lease discounted

at an appropriate discount rate



Group accounting policies under IFRS continued

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the assets are classified as operaung leases Operaung
lease payments are recognised as an expense in the income statement
on a straight linc basis over the ease term

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

Exceptional tems are those items of Income and expense that the
Group considers are materal and/or of such a nature that the separate
reportng of the exceptional item helps to provide a better indication of
the Groups underlying business performance Events which may gve
rise to the classification as exceptional include the restructuring of
businesses, gains or losses on drsposals of businesses and asset
Impairments

PROVISIONS

A provision s recogrised in the balance sheet when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obigatian as a result of a past event 1t 1s
probable that an outflow of economic benefits would be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estmate can be made of the amount
of the obligation Where the effect of the time value of money 1s
matenal the amount of a provision shall be the present value of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the obhgation Where
discounting 15 used the increase in the provision due to the passage

of tme 1s recognised as a financing cost.

The Group recognises a prowision for restructuring when it has a

detalled formal plan for the restructuring identifying at least

+ the business or part of a business concerned

* the principal locations affected

* the locations function and approximate number of employees who
will be compensated for terminating their services

¢+ the expenditures that will be undertaken

« when a plan will be implemented and

« avald expectation on those affected that « will carry out the
restructuring by starting to implement that plan or annguncing its
main features to those affected by 1t

PENSIONS AND OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates a number of defined benefit pension schemes
which require contributions to be made 1o separately administered
funds The Groups net obligations in respect of defined benefit pension
schemes are calculated separately for each scheme by esumating using
the projected unit method in accardance with advice from independent
qualfied actuaries, the amount of future benefits that employees have
earned in return for their serwice in the current and prior penods That
benefit 15 discounted to determing its present value and the fair value of
scheme assets I1s deducted The discount rate employed in determining
the present value of the schemes liabilities 1s determined by reference
19 market yields at the balance sheet date on high quality corporate
bonds of a term and currency consistent with that of the associated
employmenit benefit obligation

The net surplus or defictt ansing in the Group s defined benefit pension
schemes are shown within ether non-current assets or habilities on the
face of the Group balance sheet. The Group has eletted to avail of the
option under IAS 19 Employee Benefits to recognise post transition
date actuanal gains and losses immediately in the statement of
recognised income and expense

The estmated increase in the present value of defined benefit pension

Waterford Wedgwood UK plk

schemes habilities expected to anse from employee service duning the
period 1s charged 1o operating loss The cxpected return on the
schemes assets and the interest ¢ost on the present value of the
schemes habilites arsing are included 1n finance costs

If the benefits of a defined benefit plan are improved the portion of
the increased benefit relating to past service by employees 1s recogrised
as an expense In the tncome statement over the remaning average
working Ives of the employees concerned or to the extent that the
berefits vest immediately the expense 15 recognised immediately i the
income statcment, In addition to defined benefit pension schemes, the
Group also operates a number of defined contnbution pension schemes
where obligations arising are recognised as an expense In the income
statement as incurred

The Group also has post retirement medical aid obligations in respect
of certain employees The expected costs of these benefits are accrued
over the period of employment using an accounting methodology
similar to that for the defined benefit pension plans and determsned

by independent qualfied actuaries

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group uses derwvatve financial instruments (principally interest rate
swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts and options) to hedge
its exposure to foreign exchange risks ansing fram estimated future
currency receipts and payments and interest rate risks assocated with
borrowings

Derwvanive financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derwvative contract i1s entered into and are subsequently

re measured at therr far value The best evidence of the far value

of a dervative at initial recogniion 1s the transaction price (1e the

fair value of the consideration given or recerned) The gain or loss on

re measurement to far value s recognised immediately in the income
statement unless the dervatve qualfies for hedge accounting where-
upon the accounting treatment and presentation depends on the nature
of the item being hedged (see hedging accounting policy below)

The farr value of interest rate swaps 1s the estirmated amount that the
Group would receve or pay to terrinate the swap at the balance sheet
date taking into account current interest and currency exchange rates
and the current creditworthiness of the swap counter-paries

The fair value of forward foreign currency exchange contracts 1s
calcutated by reference to current forward currency exchange rates
at the balance sheet date being the present value of the quoted
forward price

HEDGING

For the purposes of hedge accounting hedges are classified either as far
value hedges (which entail hedging the exposure to movements in the
farr value of a recognised asset or hability) or cash flow hedges (which
hedge exposures to fluctuations in future cash flows derived from a
parucular msk associated with a recognised asset or hability or a highly
orobable forecast transaction) or hedges of net investments (which
hedge against a net Investment in a foreign operation)

In the case of fair value hedges which sausfy the conditons for hedge

accounung any gan or loss stemming from the re measurement of the
hedging nstrument to far value 1s reported in the Income statement.
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Group accounting policies under IFRS continued

In addition any gain or loss on the hedged item which 1s attrbutable to
the hedged nisk, 15 adjusted aganst the carrying amount of the hedged
item and reflected in the income statement If the hedge no longer meets
the critena for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount
of the hedged tem is amortised to the income staterment

with the objective of achieving full amortsauon by maturity of the
hedged items using the effective interest rate method

Where a dervative financial instrument 15 designated as a hedge of

the vamabuity i cash flows of a recognised asset or hiability or a highly
probable forecasted transaction, the effective part of any gan or loss on
the derivauve financial iInstrument 15 recognised as a scparatc component
of equity with the ineffective poruion being reported in the income
statement. When a highly probable forecast transaction results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or liability the cumulative gan or Joss
1s removed from equity and included in the imitial measurement of the
non-financial asset or lability Otherwise, the associated gains and losses
that had previously been recognised in equity are transferred to the
income statement as the cash flows of the hedged item effect the
incorne of the hedged transaction

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires
or s sold terminated or exercised or no longer quahfies for special
hedge accounting At that point in tme, any cumulative gain or loss on
the hedging instrument recognised as a separate component of equity
is kept In equity until the forecast transaction occurs ¥ a hedged
transaction 1s no longer anticipated to occur the net cumulatve

gain or loss recognised in equity Is transferred immediatety to the
income statement Where a derwative financial instrument 1s used to
economically hedge the foreign exchange exposure of a recognised
monetary asset or lability, hedge accounting is not applied and any gain
or loss on the hedging instrument s recognised in the iIncome statement

Where foreign currency borrowings provide a hedge against a net
investment in a foreign operation foreign exchange differences are

taken directly 1o a foreign currency translation reserve (being a separate
component of equity) Cumulative gains and losses remain in equity until
disposal of the net iInvestment i the foreign operation at which point the
refated difference s transferred to the ncome statement as part of the
overall gain or loss on sale

The Group documents, at the incepuon of the transaction, the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items as well

as its nsk managemeny objectives and strategy for undertaking various
hedging transactions The Group also documents its assessment both at
hedge inception and on an ongoing basis of whether the dervatives that
are used In hedging transacuons are highly effecuve in offsetung changes
in fair values or cash flows of hedged tems

Hedging derrvatives are classified as a current asset or habdity as at the
balance sheet date

CRITICAL ACCOUNMTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Preparation of the consohidated financal staternents requires
management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and habities These include but are not
kmited to the following areas

Impairment of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment The
group tests whether intangible assets and property plant and equipment
have suffered any impairment, as required by |AS 35 ‘impairment of
Assets' The recoverable amounts of the net asset value of cash
generatung units have been determined based on value In use calculations
These calculations require the use of estimates

The calculations are inherently judgmental and suscepuble to

change from perod to perod because they require the Group to make
assumptions about future supply and demand future sales prices the
achievement of cost savings applicable exchange rates and an
appropriate discount rate

If the Group fails to meet 1ts forecasted sales levels or fads to achieve
anticipated cost reductions or if weak economic conditions prevail in sts
primary markets the value in use of a cash generating unit 1s likely to be
adversely affected

In the annual impairment test if a revised discount rate 1s applied to the
cash flows of 3% higher than managements estimates the Group would
need to reduce the carrying value of goodwill by £45 million

Pensions The actuarial valuation of defined benefit pensions 15 based on
assumptions regarding inflation discount rates commutations the
expected return on plan assets, salary sncreases pension in payment
in¢reases and mortality rates The assumptions may differ from the actual
data as a result of changes in economic and market conditions

Inventory The Group vatues s manufactured finished goods and work

In progress at the lower of cost or net realisable value If necessary,

the Group imparrs its Inventory for discontinued slow moving and
unmarketable products based upon assumptions about future demand
market conditions and disposal costs Determining these assumptions
requires estimation of the outcome of future certain events If actual
events are more or less favourable than those projected by management,
adjustments 10 Inventory impairments may be required

Deferred tax Deferred tax assets are recognised 1o the extent that it s
probable that future taxable profits will be avaslable aganst which the
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised The Group
estimates the most prabable amount of future taxable profits taking into
considerauon apphicable tax legislaton in the relevant junisdiction These
calculations require the use of estirmates




Consolidated income statement

Revenue

Operanng loss before exceptional items
Exceptional rterns
Operaang loss
Finance income and costs
Interest recevable and similar Income
Interest payable and similzr charges before exceptional tems
Excepuenal finance costs
Loss before income tax
income tax (expense)/income
Loss for the year

(Loss)/profit auributable to
— Equity holders of the company
— Minority interests

Peter john Goulandns
Charman

Naotes

Wayne | Nutbeen
Durector

Waterford Wedgwood UK. plc
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12 months to 12 months to
3t March 2007 31 March 2006
£ Mis £ Mils
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Consolidated balance sheet

As at As at
31 March 2007 31 March 2006
Notes £ Mils £ Mils
ASSETS
Nen-current assets
Intangible assets 10 83.1 849
Property, plant and equipment I 79.8 969
Financial assets 12 1.3 15
Trade and other recenvables 14 0.2 0l
Deferred income tax assets 19 0.5 06
Tortal non-current assets 164.9 1840
Current assets
Inventores 13 144 4 1374
Trade and other recenvables 14 105 4 932
Cash and cash equmvalents L 157
Total current assets 260.9 2463
TOTAL ASSETS 4258 4303
LIABILITIES
Current liabihues
Trade and other payables 15 465.7 451 i
Finance lease obligations 17 21 21
Current income tax labiltes 2.9 35
Bank overdraft and short term borrowings 0.6 -
Provisions for other habeities and charges 18 6.8 157
Total current habilities 478.1 4724
Non-currenc kabiliues
Finance lease obhgations 17 16.3 158
Retirement benefit obligations 21 58.8 1087
Deferred income tax habilities 19 7.4 79
Prowisions for other habiliwes and charges 18 8.0 93
Bank borrowings 20 112.0 950
Trade and other payables 16 3.2 36
Total non-current habiliues 205.7 2403
TOTAL LIABILITIES 6831.8 7127




Consolidated balance sheet continued

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attnbutable te the Company’s equity holders

Equity share capital
Retaned losses
Translation reserves

Minerity interests
TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Peter John Goutandns
Charman

Wayne | Nutbeen
Darectar

Waterford Wedgwood UK plc

MNotes

22
23
23
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31 March 2007

As at
31 March 2006
£ Mils

899
G737
©06)

84 4)
20

(282 4)

4303




Consolidated statement of recognised income and expense

12 months to 12 months to
31 March 2007 31 March 2006
L Mils £ Mils
Items of tncome and expense recogmsed directly in equity
Currency transtation adjustments 2.2 (03)
Far value movement on cash flow hedges - (08)
Actuanal gains on defined benefit pension schemes 34.8 112
Net income recognised directly in equity 37.0 101
Loss for the year (22.7) 887)
Total recognised income and expense for the year 14.3 (78 6)
Attributable to
Equity holders of the company 4.3 (799)
Minority interest - I3
Total recogrused income and expense for the year 14.3 (78 6)
Consolidated cash flow statement
12 months to 12 months to
31 March 2007 31| March 2006
Notes £ Mils £ Mils
Cash flows from operating acuvities
Cash used in operations 29 (10 3) (370}
Income tax paid {1n (08)
Net cash used in operating activities (11.4) (378)
Cash flows from invesung acuviues
Purchase of property, plant and equ:pment il {8 0) 81
Purchase of intangible assets - (35)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 3.4 17
Net cash used in investing acuvines {4.6) (99}
Cash flows from financing actvities
Interest paid {13.0) (58)
Interest receved 0.4 05
Debt 1ssue costs and termination fees 6 - @n
Proceeds from borrowings 358 1515
Repayment of borrowings (12.0) (898)
Inception of finance leases t.5 13
Payment of finance lease liabiliues o.n {n
Net cash generated from/(used in} financing activives 116 509
Net (decrease)/increase in cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts (449 32
Cash cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at beginning of the year 15.7 i20
Exchange gains and losses on cash, cash equrvalents and bank overdrafts (0.8) 05
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at the end of the year 10.5 157




Notes to the consoldated financial statements

| Basis of preparatton of Group financial statements

The audited financial statements of the holding Company and 1ts subsidary undertakings for the year ended 3| March 2007 are incorporated in the
Group financial statements

The presentation currency of the Group financial statements 1s Sterling and the functional currency and presentation currency of the parent
Company, Waterford Wedgwood UK plc 1s Sterling

The Company 15 2 wholly owned subsidiary of Waterford Wedgwood plc On 5 April 2007 Waterford Wedgwood ple announced a fully
underwnitten offer of cumulatve convertible preference shares of €100 million and the potential proposed placing of cumulative convertible
preference shares of a further €100 million the proceeds of which will be used to undertake restructuring and for working capital purposes The
Directors having regard to Waterford Wedgwood ple s convertible preference share issue the Company s budgets and business plans and the
curreat trading position are satsfied that it (s appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing these financial statements

2 Effect of change in accounting estimate

During the year the Group reviewed the basis of provisioning for slow-moving obsolete and excess nventary across the Group with the abjective of
introducing a common basis of calculation This review resulted in a reduction of provisions against slow moving cobsolete and excess inventory of
£5 8 million and this is reflected in the operating loss for the |2 months ended 31 March 2007

3 Analysis of operating loss

| 2 months to 31 March 2007

Before Exceptional
exceptional iems 1terns Total
£ Mils £ Mils £ Mils
Revenue 4371 - 4371
Cost of sales (2395) (14} (2409)
Gross profit/{loss) 1976 (14} 1962
Selling, marketing and distnbution expenses (1708) (25} (1733)
Administrative expenses (386) 09 (3925)
Other operating expenses (04) 7% (83)
Other operating income 79 19 198
Operaung loss (4.3) (0.8) (5.1}

Waterford Wedgwood UK plc 2007 annual report & accounts I5




Notes to the consolidated financiai statements

3 Analysis of operating loss continued

|2 months to 31 March 20056

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit/(loss)

Setlng, marketing and distnbution expenses
Administrative expenses

Other operating expenses

Other operating income

Operaang loss

The following items have been included 1n arriving at operating loss

Revenue

Less pre-exceptional operating costs

Change in inventories of finished goods

Staff costs

Intangible asset amortsation

Depreciation of property plant and equipment

Operating lease rental —~ plant and equipment
~ others

Other operaung costs

Operaung loss before exceptional items

Exceptional nems

Operaung loss

Operating loss for the year 1s stated after charging

Auditors remuneration — audit
— taxation services

- other assurance services

Before Exceptronal
exceptional tems tems Total
£ Mils £Muls £ Mils
461 6 - 461 6
(267 2) (250) (2922)
194 4 (250) 169 4
(1789) (37} (1926)
(437) (08) (445)
(69 - 6%
16 07 23
(33.5) (38 8) {(72.3)
12 menths to {2 months to
31 March 2007 31 March 2006
Notes £ Mils £ Mils
437.1 461 6
(5.5) (163)
(136.3) (1506)
10 (20) an
1 (132) (162)
(a.3) Q4
{13.5) (158)
(267.6) (2900)
(4 3) {3315}
5 (0.8) {388)
(5.1) {(723)
12 months to 12 months 1o
31 March 2007 31 March 2006
£ Mils £ Mils
0.7 08
0.4 02
0.1 05
1.2 15

Fees paid to PricewaterhouseCoopers by the Company and its UK subsidiaries in respect of non-audit services amounted to £43 940

(2006 £93 000)




Notes 1o the consolidated financial statements

4 Segmental Report

The Group s business 15 dvided into two primary segments Ceramics Group includes the manufacture and distribution of ceramics products by
Wedgwood Royal Doulton and Rosenthal and the distnbution of crystal oroducts in certain markets Other primarily includes the distribution of
Waterford Crystal product in the USA

Inter-segment transactions are entered into under normal commercial terms and conditions

Operating profit/loss s the segmental measure reviewed by the chief operating deassion maker Unallocated overhead costs such as those incurred
by the head office are includad under the heading unallocated costs

Segment assets comprise prnimarily property plant and equipment intangibles assets inventories third party and inter-company recevables and
operating cash and exclude investments in subsidiary undertakings

Segment liabilitics comprise third party and inter-company payables other payables taxation finance Icase oblgatons retirement benefit obligations

and borrowings

BY CLASS OF BUSINESS

2 months to 31 March 2007

By class of bustness
Ceramics Group
Cther

Unallocated income

Net finance costs
Loss before taxation
Income tax

Loss for the year

2 months to 31 March 2007

By class of business
Ceramics Group

Other

Unallocated assets/(liabilties)
Intra-group eliminations

Operating
Tetal Inter {loss)/profit Operating
segmerrt segment before Exceptional (loss)/profit after
revenue revenue Revenue exceptional tems tems exceptional items
£ Mils £ Mils £ Mils £ Mils £ Mils £ Mils
3436 (23) 3413 {139) (08) (147)
958 - 958 12 - |2
- - - 84 - a4
4394 2.3) 437.1 (4.3) (0.8) (5.1
(174
(225)
02
(22.7)
Net
Total assets Total habilities  (liabilities)/assets
£ Mils £ Mils £ Mils
3585 (6429) (284 4)
525 (69 456
2782 (297 4) (192)
(2634) 2634 -
415.8 (683.8) (258.9)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

4 Segmental Report continued

i 2 months to 31 March 2007

Property plant
and equipment

Intangible asset Deprecrauon and

lrpairment of
property plant

additions additiens amortusation  and equipment
£ Muls £ Mils £ Mils £ Mils
By class of business
Ceramics Group 76 02 144 79
Other 04 - 08 -
80 0.2 15.2 7.9
12 months to 3! March 2006
Operating
Total Inter (loss)/profit Operating
segment segment before Exceptional loss after
revenue revenue Revenue exceptional tems tems excepuonal items
£ Mils £ Mils £ Mils £ Mils £ Mils £ Mils
By class of business
Ceramics Group 3641 28) 3613 (284) (388) (67 2)
Orther 1003 - 1003 41 - 41
Unallocated costs - - - 22 - 92)
464.4 (2.8) 461 6 {(33.5) (38.8) (72.3)
Net finance costs (168)
Loss before taxation (CER)]
Income tax 04
Loss for the year (88.7)
|2 months to 31 March 2006
Net
Total assets Total habiities  assets/(habilities)
£ Mils £ Mils £ Mils
By class of business
Cerarmics Group 3739 (656 2) (2823)
Other 487 (49) 438
Unallocated assets/(liabilities) 157 (301 0) (439)
Intra-group elminations (249 4) 2494 -
4303 iF%)) @81.4)




Notes to the consolidated financial statements

4 Segmental Report continued

12 months to 31 March 2006

By class of business
Ceramics Group
Other

BY GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT

Property plant
and equipment

Intangible asset Depreciation and

Impairment of
property, plant

addions additions amortsat:on  and equipment
£ Mits £ Mils £Mils £ Mils
76 35 189 19

05 - b -
8.1 3.5 200 11.9

Revenue is allocated based on the country in which the customer is based and total asscts

asset additions are based on where the assets are located

12 months to 31 March 2007

By geographical segment

Europe excluding United Kingdom
United Kingdom

Nerth America

Far East

Rest of the wortd

Intta group eliminations

12 months to 31 March 2006

By geographical segment

Europe excluding Unned Kingdom
United Kingdom

North Amenca

Far East

Rest of the world

Intra-group eliminations

Waterford Wedgwood UK pl

Property Plant
and equipment

addrtions to property plant and equipment and intangible

Intangible asset

Revenue Total asscts additions additions
£ Mils £ Mils £ Mils £ Mils
i1o 837 36 02

738 2832 17 -
1747 1332 09 -
496 415 I 4 -
294 & 04 -
- (1334) - -
437.1 425.8 8.0 0.2
Property, Plant
and equipment  Intangible assct

Revenue Total assets additions addions
£ Mls £ Mils £ Mils £ Mils
1249 874 24 35

782 3122 32 -
1779 967 13 -
528 %6 09 -
278 100 03 -
- (1156} - -
461 6 430.3 8.1 3.5
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Notes to the consolidzated financial statements

5 Exceptional items

Exceptional items are those items of Income and expense that the Group considers are material and/or of such a nature that ther separate
disclosure & relevant to a better understanding of the Group s finangal performance

The following exceptional items have been {charged)/credited to the income statement

{2 months to 12 months to

31 March 2067 31 March 2006

Mates £ Mils £ Mils

Redundancy and integration costs 0] (6.1) (182)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment () 7.9) (119)
Gain on sale of property plant and equipment () 1.1 07
Pension curtalment (v 10.8 16
Release of surplus restructuning prowvision V) 1.3 Il

Prowision for onerous contract (v - Bn

tmpairment of inventory (vin) - 40)

(0.8) (388)

Exceptional finance costs (note 6) (v} - 24

otal excepuonal tems (0.8) (409

(i} As partof its continuing initiative to lower operating costs the Group incurred a charge of £6 | millon (2006 £18 2 mifion} relating to
redundancy and integration costs in its key operating divisions

(1) Imparment charge of £7 9 millkon (2006 £1 19 millon) arising from a review of the carrying vatue of plant and equipment at the Groups
manufactuning faciliies in the Unrted Kingdorn Thus item 15 included in the other operating expense line

(m} Profits ansing from property activities amounting to £1 | million (2006 £0 7 millon}

(v} With effect from 30 june 2006 the Wedgwood Group Pension Plan was closed to future benefit accrual The closure to future benefit accrual
has resulted in an exceptional gain of £108 mithon In the 12 months ended 31 March 2006 exceptional gans of £1 6 million ocecurred as a
result of the curtailment of benefits in certan other Group pension schemes

{v) Release of surplus restructuring prowvision amounting to £1 3 million {2006 £1 | million)

(w1) Prowision for costs of £nil (2006 £8 | million) to be incurred under an onerous warehousing and distribution contract

(vi) Imparment of inventory of £nil (2006 £4 0 million) associated with the closure of manufacturing facilities in the United Kingdom

(vin) As a result of negotiation of new finance faclities termination fees of £nil (2006 £2 | million) were incurred

6 Finance costs

12 months to 12 months 1o

31 March 2007 31 March 2006

£ Mils £ Mils

Interest payable and similar charges 126 79
Interest payable to Waterford Wedgwood Group companies 1.6 18
Interest on pension scheme obligations n excess of expected retum on pension schemes assets 21 44
Interest element of finance leases payments 1.5 L
Interest payable and similar charges before exceptional finance costs 17.8 152
Early termination fees - 21
Interest payable and similar charges after exceptional finance costs 17.8 173
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

7/ Employees

Average number of persons employed
Production
Distribution sales and marketing
Administration

Payroll costs of those employees
Wapes and salanes
Social welfare costs
Retirement benefit iIncome)/costs (note 21)

12 months o 12 months to
3| March 2007 31 March 2006
Number MNumber

3234 3770

3828 4025

417 44

7489 8236

12 months to 12 months to
31 March 2007 31 March 2006
£ Mils £ Mils

118.0 1287

149 165

{5.3) 82

127.6 1534

Retirement benefit (income)/costs above include an amount of £2 ! riullon {2006 £44 milhon) which 1s recerded n finance costs and £10 8 million

(2006 £1 6 million) recorded as exceptional income

8 Directors’ remuneration and other contracts

The rermuneration in relation to Directors who held office for any part of the year s as follows

12 months to 31 March 2007

12 months 1o 31 March 2006

Executive MNon-executve Executive Non-executive

Direcrors Directors Directors Directars

£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000

Fees - 10 - 8

Other remuneration 646 - 556 -

Benefits in kind 20 - 30 -

Compensation for loss of office - - 275 -

Contributions to defined contribution pension schemes 40 - 22 -

Contnbutions to defined benefit pension schemes - - B -
Ex-gratia pension pad 1o a past Director 7 7
743 10 901

Directors’ remuneration In currencies other than Sterling ts translated at the average rate of exchange prevailing in each of the years

Lady O Reilly and Peter John Goulandris warved their fees of £5000 in each year respectively

There are two directors to whom benefits are accruing under defined contribution pension schemes

The highest paid Director receved total emoluments of £307 000 {2006 £179 000) and had a contnbution of £nil (2006 £11000) to a defined

benefit pension scheme arrangement.

The mformation with regard to Directors share options 1s set out on page 2 in the Report of the Directors

Waterford Wedgwood UK. plc

2007 annual report & accounts
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

9 Income tax

Current taxauon

Based on loss for the year
Corporation tax
Overseas taxation

Over provision in respect of prior periods
~ corparation taxation

Deferred tax
On temporary differences
Income tax (expense)/income

12 months o I2 months to
31 March 2007 31 March 2006
£ Mils £ Mils
[/ ] -
(13) {06)
0.6 06
0 6) -
04 04
{0.2) 04

No deferred tax 15 recognised on the unremitted earmings of overseas subsidiaries to the extent that the Group has control over the tming of these

remittances as these are reinvested in the business and thus no taxation 1s expecied to be payable on them in the foreseeable future

The overall taxation charge in future years will also be dependent upon any changes in the underlying assumptions made for the recogrition of

deferred tax assets representing the future value of current taxation {osses

The following table reconciles the incame tax (expense)/income for the year reported in the iIncome statement to the theoretical Income tax

({expense)/income that would result from applying the standard rate of UK corporation tax to the loss before tax

Loss before tax

Notional UK corporation taxation credit at 30%
Different taxation rates in overseas operations
Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Tax losses not utihsed

Caprtal allowances

Other urming differences

QOther permanent differences

QOwver prowsion in respect of prior periods

22

12 months to 12 months to
3§ March 2007 3| March 2006
£ Mls £ Mils
(22.5) {89 1)

6.8 267

0.3 (13

(2.0) (35)

(9-5) ({50

(1.2) (18)

4.1 (16)

0.7 (36)

06 06

(0.2) 04




Notes to the consolidated financial statemenis

10 Intangible Assets

As at 31 March 2007

Cost
At | Apnl 2006
Addrions
Transtation adjustment
At 31 March 2007

Accumulated amortisation and imparment
At | April 2006

Amortsation®

Transtation adjustment
At 31 March 2007

Net book value
At | April 2006
At 31 March 2007

As at 31 March 2006

Cost
At | April 2005
Additons
Disposals
Translation adjustment
At 31 March 2006

Accumulated amortisation and imparment
At 1 April 2005

Amortisation™®
At 3| March 2006

Net book value
At | Apnil 2005
At 3| March 2006

Brands and
Goodwil! mailing hst Software Other Total
£ Miks £ Mils £ Mils £ Mils £ Mits
698 292 32 - 1022
- - Q2 - 02
- - on - ©n
69.8 29.2 3.3 - 102.3
(118} 39 (18) - {173
- (14) 06y - (20)
- - 01 - 0!
{11.6) (G3) 2.3) - (19.2)
582 253 14 - 849
58.2 23.9 1.0 - 831
700 252 - 02 994
- - 35 - 35
- - (04) Q2 08)
{02) - 01 - 1)
698 292 3.2 - 102 2
(116 (20) - - (136)
- (19) (18) - (37)
(11.6) a9 (1.8) - {17.3)
584 272 - 02 858
58.2 2513 1.4 - 84.9

*Brands and mating st amortisavon of £1 4 milhon (2006 £ 9 million) is charged to selbng, marketing and distnbution overheads Amaortsation of sofiware costs of £0 6 million
(2006 £} 8 mikon) 15 charged 1o admunistrative expenses The remanng unamortised Ufe of the brands at 31 March 2007 15 |8 years

Waterford Wedgwood UK plk

2007 annua! report & accounts
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

10 Intangible Assets continued

CASH=GENERATING UNITS
Goodwall at 31 March 2007 relates to the excess of fair value of the consideranon paid over the identfiable net assets/liabiliies ansing on the
acquistion of Royal Doulton in January 2005

The goodwill generated through the Royal Doulton acquisition has been ailocated to cash-generating units ( CGU or "CGUs") for the purpases of
imparment testing that are expected to benefit from the business acquisition

The CGUs represent the lowest level within the group at which the associated goodwill 1s monitored for internal management purposes and are not
larger than the prnimary and secondary segments determined in accordance with IAS 14 “Segment Reporung

A summary of the allocation of the carrying value of goodwill by geographic region and within segment 15 as follows

2007 2006
£ Mils £ Mils

Ceramics Group
Unned Kingdom at 31 March 58.2 582

IMPAIRMENT TESTING METHODOLOGY RESULTS
The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment or more frequently if there 15 an indication that goodwill might be impaired

The recoverable amount of the CGUs 1s determined based on a value in use computation Where the value In use exceeds the carrying value of the
CGU the asset 1s not impaired, where the carrying amount exceeds the value In use a proviston for mpairment 1s raised Estimates used in this
process are key judgmental estimates in the financial staterments

The cash flow forecasts employed for the value in use computation are extracted from management s budgets and forecasts for a three year period
approved by senior management and the Board of Directors

A growth rate of zero percent has been used in determining value n use beyond the periad covered by the budgets and forecasts This assumption
15 made based on the difficult trading conditions which the Group continues to experience

The recoverable amount stemming from this exercise represents the present value of the future cash flows inclusive of the terrminal value
discounted at an appropriate discount rate to the CGU being assessed for imparment a discount rate of 13% (2006 | 1%) was used

Applying the above techniques no imparrment arese in 2007

The values applied to each of the key assumptions are derived from a combination of internal and external factors based on historical experience
and take into account the stability of cash flows typically associated with these businesses Key assumptions include managements'

= estmates of future profitability

= revenues generated from new product initiatives
+ trade working capnal investment needs and

= benefits of existing restructuring iniatives

The term of the discounted cash flow model 15 a significant factor in determining the value in use of the cash-generating units and has been arrived
at taking account of the Group s financsal position, its established histary of earmings and cash flow generation and its ability to pursue and integrate

value-enhancing acquisitions

The Directors are satsfied that in spite of the trading losses incurred by Waterford Wedgwood U K. plc, the carrying value of the goodwill in the
financial staternents at 31 March 2007 1s appropriate
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Notes 1o the consolidated financial statements

| | Property, plant and equipment

As at 31 March 2007

Cost
At | Aprit 2006
Addrions
Disposals
Tramslation adjustrnent
At 31 March 2007

Land and Buldings

Accumulated depreciation and imparment

At | April 2006
Depreciation charge
Amounts reclassified
Disposals
Imparment charge
Translation adjustment

At 31 March 2007

Net book value
At | Apnil 2006
At 31 March 2007

As at 31 March 2006

Cost
At | Apnl 2005
Additions
Amounts rectassified
Bisposals
Translation adjustment
At 31 March 2006

Accumulated depreciauon
At ! Apnl 2005
Depreaation charge
Disposats
Imparment charge
Translation adpstment
At 31 March 2006

Net book value
At | Apnl 2005
At 31 March 2006

No depreqauon 15 charged on freehold land with a book value of £5 6 mulbon (2006 £5 7 milion)

Plant and
Freehold  Long leasehold  Short leasehold equipment Total
£ Mils £ Mils £ Mils £ Mils £ Mils
663 126 85 2235 3109
04 - 03 73 80
09) - o4 (26 2} (275}
(18 - (08) 70 (9 6)
64.0 12.6 T6 197.6 281.8
(32%9) (13) (64 (173 4) (2140)
(1o 04 04 (14 (132)
G - - 30 -
07 - 04 249 260
- - - (79 {79
08 - 06 57 71
{35.5) (.7 (5.8) (159.0) (202.0)
334 13 21 501 969
28.5 109 1.8 8.6 798
Land and Buildings
Plant and
Freehcld  Long leasehold  Short leasehold equiprnent Tetal
£ Mils £ Mils £ Mils £ Mils £ Mils
657 126 76 2163 3022
03 - 03 75 81
01 - - {0n -
(10) - - 7 @7
12 - 06 65 83
66.3 12.6 8.5 2235 310.9
(323) 09 {56) (1490) {187 8)
{an (04 {04) {14 4} (163)
10 - - 67 77
- - - (119) (19
©5) - 04) (48) 57
{32.9) (1.3) (6.4) (173.49) (214.0)
334 17 20 673 1144
334 13 2.1 501 96.9
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

| I Property, plant and equipment continued

Included in property plant and equipment at net book value are amounts In respect of assets held under finance leases by Group companies
as foltows

As at As at
31 March 2007 31| March 2006
£ Mils £ Mils
Long leasehold property 109 13
Plant and equipment 60 58
16.9 169
Depreciation in respect of assets held under finance leases by Group campanies 15 as follows
12 months to 12 months to
31 March 2007 31 March 2006
£ Mils £ Mils
Deprecation in respect of finance leases 1.5 15

IMPAIRMENT TESTING
The CGUs represent the lowest level within the group at which the associated property plant and equipment 1s monitored for internal management
purposes and are not larger than the primary and secondary segments determined in accordance with IAS 14 Segment Reporting '

The Group tests impawment (f there 1s an indication that assets might be impaired

The recoverable amount of the CGUs 15 deterrmined based on a value in use computation Where the value in use cxceeds the carrying value of the
CGU the asset 15 not imparred where the carrying amount exceeds the value in use a prowision for impairment is raised Esttmates used in this
process are key judgmental estimates in the financial statements

The cash flow forecasts employed for the value in use computation arc cxtracted from management s budgets and forecasts for a three year period
approved by senior management and the Board of Directors

A growth rate of zero percent has been used in deterrining value In use beyond the period covered by the budgets and forecasts This assumption
1s made based on the difficult trading conditions which the Group continues to expenence

The recoverable amount stemming from this exercise represents the present value of the future cash flows inclusive of the terminal value
discourted at an appropriate discount rate to the CGU being assessed for impairment a discount rate of | 3% was used

Apphyng the above techniques an impairment of property plant and equipment of £7 9 million (2006 £nil) has been recognised relating to
Ceramics assets held in the Unrted Kingdom

The values apphed 1o each of the key assumptions are derived from a combination of internal and external factors based on historical expenence
and take Into account the stability of cash flows typically associated with these businesses Key assumptions include managements

« estimates of future profitability

* revenues generated from new product inttiatives
* trade working capitai investment needs and

= benefits of existing restructuring intiatives

The term of the discounted cash flow model 1s a significant, factor in determining the value in use of the cash-generating units and has been arrived

at taking account of the Group's financial position its established history of eamings and cash flow generation and its ability to pursue and ntegrate
value-enhancing acquisitions
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

| 2 Financial assets

2007 2006

£ Mils £ Mils

Balance at ¢ Apnil 1.5 16
Translation adjustment {0.2) on
Balance at 3| March 1.3 15

| 3 Inventories

As at As at

31 March 2007 31 March 2006

£ Mils £ Mils

Raw materals .5 114
Work in progress 17.5 161
Finished goods 115.4 1099
144.4 1374

The estimated replacement cost of inventories s not matecrially different from the above amounts

Impairment of inventories recognised as an expense within exceptional items for the 12 months to 31 March 2007 amounts to £all (2006 £40 million)

Waterford Wedgwood UK. plc

2007 annual report & accounts
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

| 4 Trade and other receivables

As at As at
31 March 2007 31| March 2006
£ Mils £ Mils
Due within one year
Trade recewvables 59.9 586
Provision for impairment of trade recewvables (34) (50)
Amounts owed by Waterford Wedgwood Group companies 36.2 2l &
Cther recevables 7.0 03
Prepayments and accrued income 57 77
1054 932
Due after more than one year
Other recevables 0.2 0l
0.2 0l

| 5 Trade and other payables — amounts faling due within one year

As at As at
31 March 2007 31 March 2006
£ Mils £ Mils
Trade payables 533 487
Amounts owed to Waterford Wedgwood Group companies 3901 3753
Payable for taxation and social welfare 3.8 50
Other payables 66 72
Accrued labilities 1.9 49
4657 451 1

Payables for taxaton and social welfare included above are as follows
income tax deducted under PAYE 1.4 12
Pay related social insurance 0.6 07
Value added tax payatle 1.5 28
Other taxes 0.3 03
3.8 50
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| 6 Trade and other payables — amounts falling due after one year

Accruals and deferred income
Other payables

As ar As at

31 March 2007 31 March 2006
£ Mils £ Mils

30 33

02 03

32 36

| 7 Finance lease obligations

Amounts payable under finance leases
Within one year
Twao to five years
After five years

Less Future finance charges
Present value of minimum lease payments

Less Amounts duc for settlement within
12 months (current habilities)

Amounts due for settlement after 12 months
{non-current habiities)

Group lease obligations are denominated in the following currencies

Eure
Sterling

Mirnimum lease

Present value of minimum

payments lease payments

As at As at As at As at
31 March 2007 31 March 2006 31 March 2007 31| March 2006
£ Mils £ Mils £ Mils £ Mils
2.3 21 21 21
2.3 75 8.4 76
28.0 311 7.9 82
39.6 407 18.4 179

(21.2) (228) - -

18.4 179 18.4 179
(2.1) (21}

163 158

As at As at

31 March 2007 3} March 2006

£ Mils £ Mils

3.0 [l

154 168

18.4 179

It 1s the Group s policy to lease certain assets under finance leases Lease terms vary from ten to thirty years Rentals are typically fixed for the first
five years followed by a fixed uplift at the end of the fifth year Subsequent rent reviews are upwards only and are reviewed every five years Rental
agreements contain the usuat tenant repair, maintenance and insurance obhgations For the twelve months to 31 March 2007 the average effective
borrowing rate was 8 2% (2006 83%) The Groupss obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors title to the leased assets

Waterford Wedgwood UK plc

2007 annual report & accounts
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Notes to the consohdaied financial statements

| 8 Provisions for other labilities and charges

As at 3| March 2007

Restructuring  Onerous lease Other
provision and contract provisions Total
£ Mils £ Mils £ Mils £ Mils
At | Apnl 2006 153 89 08 250
Charged to income staterment as an exceptional item 61 - - 61
Credited to ncome statement as an exceptional tem (13) - - {13
Credrted to income statement as an operating income - ©8) - 08)
Utlised dunng the year (134 ©5) - (139)
Translation adjustment ©3 - - 03)
At 31 March 2007 64 7.6 0.8 148
Less Amounts due for settlement within 12 months
{current habilties) (53 (rn 02 (68)
Amounts due for settlement after |2 months
(non current habilities) 09 65 06 80
As at 31 March 2006
Restructuring  Onerous lease Cther
Provision and contract provisions Total
£ Mils £ Mils £ Mils £ Mis
At | Apnl 2005 Il 08 05 124
Charged to income statermnent as an exceptional stem 181 81 - 262
Credited to0 income statement as an exceptional tem (19 - - (19
Charged to income statement as an operating cost - - 04 04
Utlised duning the year {123) - ©on {124}
Translation adjustment (06} - - (06)
Ac 3| March 2006 15.3 8.9 0.8 25.0
Less Amounts due for settfement within |2 months
{current liabilities} (143) (2 0 (157}
Amounts due for settlement after 12 months
{non-current liabilities) 10 77 06 93
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|9 Deferred taxation

The amount of deferred tax asset/(lability) recogrused in respect of each temporary difference 1s as follows

Ac ) April 2005

Credit/(charge) to iIncome
statement

Transtavon adjustment

At 31 March 2006

Credit/(charge} to Income
staterment

Translauon adjustment

At 3| March 2007

* Other deductions anse prmariy on finite ife intangibles and inventory rescrves n the USA

The above net deferred tax lability is recorded in the balance sheet as follows

Non-current deferred income tax assets

Deferred nicome tax habilites

Expiry | Apnl 2008 to 31 March 2009
Expiry | April 2009 to 31 March 2010
Expiry | Apnl 2010 to 31 March 201 |
Expiry | Apnl 2011 to 31 March 2012

Qther expiry
Indefinte

Accelerated Other
capital Retirement Other deferred

allowances obligations deductions*  deductions** Tax losses Provision Total
£ Mils £ Mils £ Mils £ Mils £ Mus £ Mils £ Mils

56 285 (148) 270 999 {154 C) {78}

44 (15) 13 {114 193 (113} 04

- - (05) 06 09 09) [y

100 266 {140) 162 1201 (166 2) (73

93 (£45) (05} (39 175 75 04

{01 - G7 (13 (15) 23 -
192 12.1 (13 8) 110 136.0 (171.4) (69)
** Deferred deductions include amounts relating to restructuring prowvisions and accounts recervable reserves

As at As at

31 March 2007 31 March 2006

£ Mils £ Mils

0.5 06

a4 79

(&9 73

As at 31 March 2007 the amount and expiry of unused tax Josses reflected in the above analysis 15 as follows

Amount of

tax losses

£ Mils

03

03

16

19

181

4363

4585

Potential deferred tax assets of £171 4 mullion (2006 £1662 million) ansing principally from trading losses pension deficits and restructuring charges
have not been recognised The Directors believe there 1s currently insufficient evidence to support the recognition of a deferred tax asset The
majority of losses and charges may be carried forward indefinitely under current laws, but these losses can only be offsct against taxable profits
generated in the same tax entities and tax jurisdictions i which they were incurred

Waterford Wedgwood UK plc

2007 annual report & accounts
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20 Borrowings

Repayable as follows
Between two and five years

Split of borrowings between
— Secured
- Unsecured

The following are included in long and medium term borrowings

Mutti-currency credit facility
Mezzanine term loans
Subordinated debt

Term loan

MULTI=CURRENCY CREDIT FACILITY AND MEZZANINE TERM LOANS

As at As at
31 March 2007 31 March 2006
£ Mils £ Mils
112.0 950
106 6 878
5.4 52
112.0 950
As at As at
31 March 2007 3} March 2006
£ Mils £ Mils
B3.4 639
22.9 259
5.4 52
03 -
[0 950

The mult-currency credit facility and the mezzanine term loans provide loan faclibes to the Waterford Wedgwood Group of €200 millien and US$60
million respectively The loans are at variable rates of interest. The multi-currency credit faciity 1s repayable on [0 June 2010 and the mezzanine term
loans are repayable on 31 August 2010 The lenders have a fixed charge over certain freehold property plant and equipment of the Waterford
Wedgwood Group in Ireland UK and Germany The lenders also have a floating charge over the magority of the Waterford Wedgwood Groups
worldwide inventory trade recevables and certain other assets of the Group An amendment to the facility agreement was agreed with the Groups

senior lenders from 18 May 2006 to 31 July 2006, removing this rminimum availability requirement

The multi-currency credit faciity and the mezzanine term loans are subject to two financial covenants ratio of sentor debt to EBITDA ang minimum
trading cash flow These covenants are tested monithly only when excess avallability for the Waterford Wedgwood Group (fundable assets less debt)

falls below €15 million

SUBORDINATED DEBT

The subordinated debt from Anglo Irish Bank, provides facilities of £5 4 millen (2006 £5 2 million} 1o Rosenthal AG The loan is at vanizble rates of
interest and 15 repayable on 18 November 2010 There are no financial covenants applicable 1o the subordinated debt
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2| Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates pension schemes In a number of its businesses throughous the world These schemes are structured to accord with local
conditions and practices in each country that they operate in and can include both defined contribution and defined benefit schemes The assets of
the schernes are held where relevant in separate trustee administered funds

(2) Defined contnbution schemes
The amount recogrised as an expense in the Consolidated Income Statement for defined contribution schemes for the yoar was £1 9
milion (2006 £1 2 million}

(b} Defined benefit schemes
The Group operates defined benefit pension schemes in a number of countries In which it operates primanly in the Umited Kingdom
Germany, Canada and Japan

The values used in this disclosure are based on the most recent actuarial valuations and have been updated by the indvidual schemes’ independent
and professionally qualified actuaries to incorporate the requirements of IAS 19 Employee Benefits in order 1o assess the labriues of the various
schemes as at 31 March 2007 using the projected unit credit method All assets in the schemes have been measured at they fair value at the balance
sheet date

Full actuanal valuations are carried out for the Group s pension schemes at least on a tnennial basis The actuarial reports are not available for public
inspection The most recently completed actuanal valuation of the major schemes were as at 31 December 2004 for the Wedgwood Group Pension
Scheme and | lanuary 2005 for the Royal Douiton UK Pension Scheme

The amounts recognised In the Income statement in relation to defined bencfit and defined contribution schemes in the year were as follows

12 months to 12 months to

31 March 2007 31 March 2006

£ Mils £ Mils

Current service cost 1.5 42
Gans on curtalments (10.9) (16)
Expected return on pension schemes assets (23.0) (20%)
Interest on retirement benefit obligations 15.1 253
Defined contribution pension scheme charge 1.9 12
Net amount {credited)/charged to loss before income tax (5.3) 82

The total amount recognised in the consolidated income statement in relation to defined contribuuon and defined benefit schemes was
(credited)/charged as follows

12 months to 12 months to

31 March 2007 31 March 2006

£ Mils £ Mils

Cost of sales 10 20
Selling, marketing and distmbution expenses P2 | 4
Administt ative expenses 12 20
Finance costs {note 6} 2.1 44
Exceptional items {note 3) (10.8) {1 6)
(5.3) 82

We expect to contribute £7 7 milhon to our defined benefit pension schemes in the 12 months to 31 March 2008
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Notes to the consoldated financial statements

2| Retirement benefit obligations continued

The amounts recogrised in the consolidated statement of recogrised income and expense were as follows

12 months to 12 months to
31 March 2007 3t March 2006
£ Mils £ Mils
Actual return less expected returm on pension schemes’ assets 6.t 470
Expertence gans and losses arisng on the schemes' labiliies 0.l (G6)
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the schemes habilities 28 6 (322)
Actuanal gain recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Recogrused Income and Expense 348 1t2
Actual return on scheme assets 29.1 679
The assets and habiliues in the schemes and the expected rates of return were
As at 3| March 2007 As at 31 March 2006 As at 31 March 2005
Long term Long term Long term
rate of Value rate of Value rate of Value
recurn® £ Mils return® £ Mils return* £ Mils
Equities S 3%-7.0% 223.0 53%-68% 2217 519%-76% 1893
Gilts 3 9%4.0% 136.6 38%-38% 1327 42%-4 2% 1238
Bonds 3 5%-4.8% 395 35%-4 5% 396 35%-50% 289
Property 5.9%-5.9% 22.5 58%-58% 190 62%62% I
Cashfother 0.8%-4.8% 6.0 08%-4 1% 45 0B8%-44% 45
Total vatue of scherne assets 427.6 4175 3576
Present value of defined benefit obligations (486 4) {5262) (479 9)
Net defined benefit pension hability (58 8) (1087) (1223)

* The gverall expected rate of return on schemne assets 1s based on current market long Lerm expectations of each of e categones of assets in the schemes. The long term

rate of return on schemes assets are disclosed n a range format reflecung the differing relurns in each scheme

The schemes defict at 31 March has been recogrused in full in the consolidated balance sheet in non-current habilities

The principal finangial assumptions used by the Groups actuaries in order 1o calculate the pension schemes labiiies at 31 March which are

disclosed in a range format to reflect the differing assumptions in each scheme, were as follows

31 March 2007

Inflation assumptions 0.0%-3.1%
Rate of increase in future pensionable salaries 1.0%-3.5%
Rate of increase for pensions i payment and deferred pensions 0.0%-3.0%
Rate used to discount scheme liabilibes I 8%-5.3%
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31 March 2006

00%—29%
1 0%-4 4%
00%-2 8%
| 5%-5 3%




MNotes to the consolidated financial statements

2| Retirement benefit obligations continued

The average life expectancy in years of a pensioner reuring at age 65 15 as follows

Male
Fernale

The movements in the schemes defined benefit obligations during the year were as follows

Present value of defined benefit obligations at the beginning of the year
Current service cost

Gains on curtailments

Interest on retirement benefit obligations

Employee pension contributions

Actuaral (gain)/loss ansing on scheme liabilites

Benefits paid

Translation adjustments

Present value of defined benefit obligations at the end of the year

The present value of defined benefit obligations at the end of the year that relates to

Wholly unfunded plans
Wholly or parily funded plans

The movements in the schemes assets during the year were as follows

Fair value of schemes assets at the beginning of the year
Expecied return on pension schemes assets

Employer pension contributions

Employee pension contnbutions

Actual return less expected return

Bencfits paid

Translation adjustments

Fair value of schemes assets at the end of the year

Waterford Wedgwood UK. plc 2007 annual report & accounts

As at As at

31 March 2007 31 March 2006
Years Years

20.2 2012

23.1 231

12 months to 12 months to
31 March 2007 3| March 2006
£ Mils £ Mils

526.2 4799

1.5 42

(10.8) {18

251 253

04 20

(28.7) 358
(24.4) 20N

2.9 07

486.4 5262

As at As at

31 March 2007 31 March 2006
£ Mils £ Mils

2.8 234

463.6 5028

486 4 5262

12 months to 12 months to
3] March 2007 3| March 2006
£ Mils £ Muls

417.5 3576

23.0 209

6.7 82

0.4 20

6.1 470
(24 4) 201)

.7 19

427 &6 4175
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2| Retirement benefit obligations continued

As at 31 March

2007 2006 2005
£ Mils £ Mils £ Mils
Present value of defined benefit obligation (486.4) (526 2) (4799)
Fair value of plan assets 427.6 4175 3576
Net defined benefit pension habdity (58.8) (1087} (1223)
Expenence adjustments on plan liabilities 0l (3 &) o4
Expenence adjustments on plan assets 6.1 470 09
22 Share capital
As at
31 March 2007 31 March 2006
£ Muls £ Mils
Authonsed
220 milhon (2006 220 millon) ordinary shares of 25p each 550
1605 billion (2006 65 billkon) income shares of |p each 160.5 650
215.5 1200
Ordinary shares Income shares
of 25p each of ip each Total
£ Mils £ Mils £ Mils
issued as fully paid
At 1 April 2006 - Ordinary shares — 81,60t 76%
- Income shares — 4 450 138481 454 445 899
Bonus 1ssue of 1,003,946,503 income shares - 101 104
At 31 March 2007 — Ordinary shares — 181,601,769
— Income shares - 5,454,084,984 45.4 54.6 100.0
lssued as fully paid
At [ Apnl 2005 - Ordinary shares — 181,601,769
- Income shares — 2 758,281,366 454 276 730
Bonus 1ssue of | 691 857,115 income shares - 169 169
At 31 March 2006 — Ordinary shares — 181,601 769
— Income shares — 4,450,138,481 45.4 445 89.9

In June 2006 the Waterford Wedgwood Group announced an open offer for | 003 946 503 new stock urits (compnsing an Ordinary Share of €006
in Waterford Wedgwoad plc and an Income Share of |1p in Waterford Wedgwood UX ple) of €006 per new stock unit to raise €60 2 million before
expenses The net proceeds of the 1ssue of €58 4 milhon have been used 1o fund restructuring costs and for funding the workang capital requirements

of the Group

In May 2005 the Waterford Wedgwood Group announced a righis issue of | 631,857,115 new stock units (comprising an Crdinary Share of €006 in
Waterford Wedgwood plc and an Income Share of Ip in Waterford Wedgwood UK ple) of €006 per new stock unit to raise €101 5 million before
expenses As part of this nghts 1ssue the Company issued 1,691 857 115 income shares i the form of a bonus 1ssue The net proceeds of the nghts
issue of €96 7 million have been used to fund restructuring costs and for funding the working capital requirements of the Waterford Wedgwood

Group
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23 Reconciliation of changes in equity

Attributabie to equity ho'ders of the Company

Cash flow

Share Retained hedging Translation Minority Total

capital losses reserve reserves Sub total lnterests equity

£ Mils £ Mils £ Mils £ Mils £ Mils £ Mils £ Mils
At | April 2006 899 (3737) - (08) (284 4) 290 (282 4)
Currency translation adjustments - -~ - 23 23 ©on 21
Actuanal gains on defined benefit pension schemes - 348 - - 348 - 348
(Loss¥profit for the year - (22 8) - - (228) 01 (227
Bonus issue of Income shares 101 - - - Q| - 101
Az 3| March 2007 100.0 (361.7) - 17 (260.0) 2.0 (258.0)
At 3| March 2005 730 (2950 - 02) @2 07 (2215)
Adoption of IAS 32 and IAS 39 - - 08 - 08 - 038
At | April 2005 730 {2950} 08 0D (221 4) 07 (2207)
Currency translation adjustments - - - 04) 04 01 (03)
Far value movement con cash flow hedges - - (08 - 08 - 08)
Actuanal gains on defined benefit pension schemes - 112 - - 112 - b2
(Loss)/profit for the year - (899) - - 899 12 (887)
Bonus 1ssue of income shares 69 - - - 169 - 169
At 31| March 2006 899 (373.7) - (0.6) {284.4) 20 {2812.4)

24 Derwvatives and other financial instruments — objectives, polices
and strategies

TREASURY MANAGEMENT AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Groups treasury operations are managed by the Waterford Wedgwood Group Treasury function within parameters formally defined and
reviewed by the Treasury Risk Management Group comprising executive and non-executive Directors of the Waterford Wedgwood Group Board
supplemented by procedures and bank mandates The Waterford Wedgwood Group Treasury function operates as a centralised service managing
interest rate foreign currency and financing nisk and 1ts activities are routinely reported to members of the Waterford Wedgwood Group Board

Consistent with Group policy Waterford Wedgwood Group Treasury does not engage in speculative activity Financial instruments including
derivatives are used to raise finance and 1o manage interest rate and foreign currency risk ansing from the Group s operations The Directors set out
their views on the key financal risks below

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK MANAGEMENT

The majerity of the Group s business operaticns and 1ts assets and liabiliies are transacied and held n four principal currencies Euro, Sterling US
Dotfar and Yen Taking in to account the Group s view on the four principle curriencies hedging in place at 31 March 2007 for the coming 12 manths s
as follows 75% of the Group s Yen/stg£ exposure

The Group's policy 15 to use foreign currency borrowings and forward foreign currency contracts to hedge part of the irmpact on the Groups balance
sheet of exchange rate movements on foreign currency denominated assets and habilives This includes structures whereby there is a guaranteed
downside rate and potental to gain from favourable currency movements

LIQUIDITY RISK MANAGEMENT

The Groups liquidity risk management 1s managed as part of the wider Waterford Wedgwood Group and comprises a combination of cash flow
generated from operations short-term bank borrowings lang term debt equity funding and leasing and to achieve a balance between certanty of
funding and a flexible cost effective barrowing structure As part of this strategy the Waterford Wedgwood Group raised €60 2 million through an
cpen offer in June 2006 To further ratronalise and restructure the Waterford Wedgwood Groups operations on 5 April 2007 the Waterford
Wedgwood Group announced the issue of €100 million of cumulative, convertible preference shares with an option of placing a further €100
miilion as noted in note | The Waterford Wedgwood Group ensures continuity of funding by maintaining a broad portfolio of debt, diversified by
source and maturity and by mamtaining facilities sufficient to cover peak anticipated borrowing requirements A breakdown of the matunity profile of
the Group s net borrowings is shown fater in this note

CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's potential concentrations of credit risk consist principally of short-term cash investments and trade recewvables The Group only deposits
short-term cash surpluses wath high quality banks and snsttutions Trade recevables comprise a farge widespread customer base with no sigmificant
concentrations of credit nsk.
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24 Denvatives and other financial instruments — objectives, polices

and strategies continued

INTEREST RATE RISK MANAGEMENT

The wnterest rate exposure of the Group ansing from its borrowings and deposits 1s managed as part of the wider Waterford Wedgwood Group

The effective rate of interest pasd during the year to 31 March 2007 was 8 6% (2006 822%) A 1% rise in market rates would ncrease the loss
before income tax for the year to 3| March 2007 by £1 5 mdhon (2006 £09 million} The Group has no interest rate swaps or collars at

31 March 2007

INTEREST RATE AND CURRENCY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
The currency and interest rate exposure of the financial habiliies of the Group was

Floating rate
financial habilities

£ Mils
Currency
At 31 March 2007
Euro 180
Sterling 607
uss 517
130.4
At 31 March 2006
Euro 282
Ster ling 370
Uss 450
Yen 17
112.9
Interest rates on floatng rate borrowings are based on natenal LIBOR equivalents in the relevant currencies
MATURITY PROFILE OF THE GROUP’S FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
The following table analyses the Groupss financial habilities, which are repayable as follows
Total financial habilities Net debt
As at As at Asat As at
31 March 2007 3} March 2006 31 March 2007 3} March 2006
£ Mils £ Mils £ Mils £ Mils
On demand or within | year (2.1) 21) 8.4 136
Within four ycars (120.7) - (120.7) -
Within five years - {102.6) - {1028)
After five years (7.6) {82) 7.6) 82)
(1304) (1129 (119.9) o7

Net debt compnises gross borrowings and finance lease obligations less cash at bank and in hand and unamorused debt issue costs

There are no loans repayable by installments where any installment 1s due after five years
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24 Derwvatives and other financial instruments — objectives, polices
and strategies continued

Asat As at
31 March 2007 31| March 2006
£ Mils £ Mils

Spht of gross borrowings and finance lease obligations between
Secured (125.0) (1077
Unsecured (5-4) (52)
Total gross borrowings and finance lcase obhgauons (130.4) (1129)

Subordinated debt of £5 4 millon was provided by Anglo Insh Bank Corporation plc ("Anglo Irnish ) to Rosenthal AG {a German company n which
the Company has a majority interest} by term loan agreements dated 28 May 2004 and 25 Junc 2004 respectively By agreement dated 28 May 2004
and 25 Juna 2004 between Anglo Irnsh and Lionheart Ventures (Overscas) Limited, a Cyprus incorporated company controtled by Sir Anthony O Reilly
('Lionheart } Anglo Irish has options to put these loans at par plus accrued interest to Lionheart Sir Anthony O Redly and Mr Peter john Goulandnis
have entered into undertakings dated 28 May 2004, 25 June 2004 and 12 December 2005 in favour of Anglo Insh pursuant to which they severally
undertake as to one half of any amount required (1} to pay to Lionheart sufficient funds to ensure that Lionheart 1s in position to discharge its
obligauons under the put options or {1} to pay to Anglo Irmsh, n discharge of Lionheart's obligations the amount of the obligations of Lionheart under
the put options Effective from | January 2006 Fairfield Holdings Limited a company controlled by Sir Anthony O Reilly was substituted for Lionheart
in the aforementioned arrangements

By agreement dated 20 December 2005 the repayment date for the £5 4 million loan provided to Rosenthal AG was extended 1o 18 November 2010

MATURITY ANALYSIS OF UNDRAWN COMMITTED BORROWING FACILITIES

As at As at
3t March 2007 31 March 2006
£ Mils £ Mils
Matunity analysis of undrawn committed borrowing faciibes
After two years 195 309
19.5 309
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Set out below 1s a year end comparison of book and farr values of the financial instruments by category
Fair values of financial assets and financial habilities are as follows
As at 31 March 2007 As at March 2006
Book value Fair value Book vatue Far value
£ Mils £ Mils £ Mils £ Mils
Cash cash equivalents and bank overdrafts 10.5 10.5 157 157
Borrowings (130.4) (130.9) (129 {1123)

The carrying value of trade recevables and trade payables approximate therr fair values The book value of dervatives are £nil (2006 £ni) and
approxamate therr far value
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25 Foreign currency

The Group uses forward currency contracts in the normal course of business to hedge exchange nsk on anticipated foreign currency transactions
and translation

The Group had the following farward sales commitments all maturing within the next 12 months

As at As at
3i March 2007 31 March 2006

Japanese Yen ¥3,000 Om -

During the year arising from the Group's cash flow hedging activities the exchange rate on its major overseas trading cash flows was as follows

12 months to 12 months to
31 March 2007 31 March 2006

¥/Stgfh 236.35 18611

CURRENCY EXPOSURE OF THE GROUP'S NET MONETARY ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

The table below shows the Group's currency exposures, being those that give rise to the net currency gains and losses recognised in the income
statement Such exposures comprise the monetary assets and monetary habilities of the Group that are not denominated in the funcuionzl currency
of the operating unit involved These exposures were as follows

Uss Yen Crther Total
£ Mils £ Mils £ Mils £ Mils
Ac 31 March 2007
Functional currency of Group operation
Euro 51 - 04 55
Stgf S7 20 (43) 104
Other ©1} - 13 12
107 9.0 (2.6) 171
Ac 31 March 2006
Functional currency of Group operation
Euro 63 - 10 73
Stgd (34) 102 22 90
Other 01} - 05 04
2.8 10.2 3.7 16.7
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26 Contingent assets and liabilities

0] Litigation
The Group from time to time s party to various legal proceedings It 1s the opinion of the Directors that tosses if any, ansing in connection
with these matiers will have no material adverse wnpact on the financial position of the Group

27 Caprital commitments

As at As at

31 March 2007 3| March 2006

£ Mils £ Mils

Contracted for, but not provided 0.6 05

All of the above relates to property plant and equipment

28 Operating lease commitments

At the balance sheet date the Group had outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating leases, which fail due as foliows

As ar As at

31 March 2007 3! March 2006

£ Mils £ Mils

MNo later than one year 14.4 197
Between two and five years k1.}:} 451
After five years 260 377
772 1025

The total of future mmimum sublease payments to be recenved under non-cancellable subleases at 31 March 2007 were £18 8 million
(2006 £309 rmihon)

The majority of the operaung lease commitments refate to the rentat of property under long-term rental contracts The outstanding term of the

operating leases at 31 March 2007 ranges from less than one year to twenly three years Property rentals are typically fixed for a period of five
years with other rentals fixed for the term of the contract
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29 Reconciliation of operating loss before exceptional items to net cash

used in operations

12 months to 12 months to
31 March 2007 31 March 2006
L Mils £ Mils
Operating loss before exceptcnal items {4.3) (335)
Adjustment for gans on disposal of assets {0.9) -
Depreciation and amortisation 15.2 200
Unrealsed foreign exchange movements 2.2 ol
Restructuring spend (13.4) (123)
Loss from operauons before changes in working capital and provisions .2 (257)
Increase in Inventories (2.7 (146)
(Increase)/decrease in operating recevables (8.0) 47
Increase/{decrease) in operating payables 1.6 (14
Cash used in operations {10.3) 370
30 Analysis of net debt
As at Exchange As at
I April 2006 Cash flow mavements 31 March 2007
£ Mils £ Mils £ Mifs £ Mils
Cash cash equivalents and bank overdrafts 157 {(44) {08) 10.5
Finance lease obligations {179 (05 - (18.4)
Long term loans 50 (238) 68 (112.0)
(372) (287) 60 (119.9)
As at Exchange As at
I Aprit 2003 Cash flow movements 3% March 2006
£ Mils £ Mils £ Mils £ Mils
Cash cash equivalents and bank overdrafts 120 32 05 157
Finance lease obligations {177) ©2) - (179
Long term loans (293) (62 1) (38) (95 0)
(350} (59 %) 3N 9712)
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31 Principal subsidiary companies

Listed below are the principal subsidiary companies that comprise the Waterford Wedgwood UK Group

Nome

MANUFACTURING
Josiah Wedgwood & Sons Ltd

Rosenthal AG

PT Doulton

DISTRIBUTION
Waterford Wedgwood Austraha Ltd
*Waterford Wedgwood Canada Inc

Waterford Wedgwood USA Inc

Waterford Wedgweood japan Ltd

Waterford Wedgwood Retal Ltd

Josiah Wedgwood & Sons (Exports} Ltd

Josiah Wedgwood (Malaysa) Sdn Bhd

*Waterlord Wedgwood Trading
Singapore Pte Lid

Waterford Wedgwood (Tarwan) Ltd

Wedgwood GmbH

Spring U5 A Corporation

Royal Doulten (UK) Limitad

Royal Daulten Australia Pty Limited

Royal Doulton Canada Limited

Royal Doulton Hong Kong Limited
Royal Doulten Japan KK
Rayal Doulton USA Inc

FINANCE
Statum Lirmited

OTHER

*Wedgwood Lid

*Waterford Wedgwood inc
Wiaterford Wedgwood GmbH
*Royal Doulton Ltd

Regrstered offxce ond counyry
of mxorponaticn

Barlaston Stoke-on-Trent, England
Selt Germany

Tangerang, Indonesia

Barlaston Stoke-on-Trent, England
Toronta Canada

New York, USA

Tokyo Japan

Barlaston Stoke-on-Trent England
Barlaston, Stoke-on-Trent England
Kuala Lumpur Malaysia

Stngapore

Taipet Tarwan

Selb Gerrmany

Delavare USA

Barlaston Stoke-on-Trent, England
Sydney Austraba

Toronto Canada

Hong Kong

Tokyo Japan
New |ersey USA

Barlaston Stoke-on-Trent, England

Barlaston Stoke-on-Trent, England
Delaware USA
Selb Germany
Bartaston, Stoke-on- Trent, England

tsted copend

60,000 Stg £1 Ord shares
960000 shares of no par value

8000 USEI 000 Ord shares

485 210 Stg £1 Ord shares
110 Class A shares

363 Class B shares

20 US%!| Cormmon shares
4000 ¥50 000 shares

100 Stg £1 Ord shares
499 Stg £1 Ord shares

2 Renl Ord shares

248 5$50 000 shares
13,600 000 NT$10 Ord shares
| £25 565 share
166 LIS3C 0! shares
32,971 000 S1g £1 Ord shares
1531 985 A% | Ord shares
38 500 Common shares

of no par value
8000000 HKS | Ord shares
2000 ¥50 000 Cormnmon shares
400 USE100 Common shares

50000 Stg£1 Ord shares

46 195 052 Stg 25p Ord shares

410 shares of no par value

b £5 603000 share

83091 092 Stg £099 deferred shares
332364288 Stg £001 Ord shares

Nowre of busness

Ceramic tableware/
piitware manufacturer
Ceramic tableware/
pftware manufacturer
Ceramc tableware/
giftware manufacturer

Distnbutor
Distrbutor

Distributor
Distnbuter
Retaller
Exporter
Retaler

Distnbutor
Distnbutor
Sales office
Drigtrbuatar
Distnbutcr
Distnbutor
Distnbutor

Distrbutor
Distnbutor
Distnbutor

finance

Subsidiary holding company
Subsidiary holding company
Subsidiary holding company
Subsidiary holding company

Immediate subsidianes of Waterford Wedgwood U K ple are marked* With the excepuon of Rosenthal AG where the Group owns 89 8% Waterford Wedgwood Canada
Inc where the Group owns 77%, Spring USA Corporation where the Group owns 60% and PT Doulton where the Group owns 95%, all subsidiary comparies are |00 per
cent owned All companies operate primanly in thewr country of incorporation with the exception of Waterford Wedgwood Austrahia Limited which operates in Austrabia.

Waterford Wedgwood UK plc

2007 annual report & accounts
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32 Waterford Wedgwood UK pic

Waterford Wedgwood UK. plc 15 a public hrmited liabiity company domicited and incorporated in the United Kingdom The registered office address 1s

Barlaston
Stoke-on-Trent
Staffordshire
England ST 12 9ES

Its pnncipat actmity 1s as & holding company The Company's subsidianes are engaged in the manufacture marketing and distnbution of luxury lifestyle
products through four maor nternauonal brands Waterford Crystal Wedgwood Royal Doulton ard Rosenthal

33 Related party transactions

The Group 15 managed as part of the wider Waterford Wedgwood Group Note 37 of the Waterford Wedgwood plc financial statements describes
the related party transactions pertaining to the Waterford Wedgwood Group

34 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards
that are not yet effective

Certan new Standards, interpretations and Amendments to Published Standards have been published that are mandatory for the Group's
accounting periods beginning on or after | April 2007 or fater periods but which the Group has not early adopted are as follows

+ IFRS 7, Financial Instruments Drsclosures and a complementary amendment to IAS | Presentation of Financal Statements — Capital
disclosures (effective | January 2007)

< IFRS B Operating Segments {effective | january 2009)

+ IAS 23 (Rewised) Borrowing Costs {effective | January 2009)

» IFRIC 8, Scope of IFRS 2 {effective I May 2006%)}

+ IFRIC 9, Reassessment of Embedded Dervatives (effecuive | June 2006*}

+ IFRIC I Interim Financial Reporting and Imparment (effecuve | November 2006*)

+ IFRIC Il Group and Treasury Share Transactions (effective | March 2007}

* IFRIC 12 Serwice Concession Arrangements (effective | January 2008)

« IFRIC t3 Customer Loyalty programmes (eflective | July 2008)

= IFRIC {4 The limit on a defined Benefit Asset, Minmum Funding Requirements and Interaction (effectve | January 2008)

* annual reporting penods beginning on or afier that date

Having carried out a preliminary review of the relevance of the above new Standards Interpretations and Amendments to Published Standards, the
Group believes that they wili not have a material tmpact on the Group except for the following

() IFRS 7 Financiat Instruments Disclosures and a complementary amendment to |AS | Presentation of Financial Statements — Capital
Dhsclosures, which will intreduce new disclosure requirements
{n) IFRS 8, Operating Segments, which will ntroduce new disclosure requirements

35 Approval of consolidated financial statements

The Drrectors approved the consolidated financial statements on 29 Julty 2007
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Company accounting policies under UK GAAP

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements are prepared under the historcal cost
convention and in accordance with the accounting poliaes set out
below accounting standards generally accepted in the United Kingdom
and UK statute

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are valued at the lower of
amortised cost or net realisable value Net realisable value 1s deemed 10
be the underlying net assets of the subsidary undertaking at the period
end and in the currency n which they are denominated translating this
amount into Sterfing at each successive balance sheet date using the
balance sheet exchange rate Exchange gains and losses arising on
translation of these investments are taken directly to revenue reserves
along with the corresponding exchange gain or loss ansing on foreign
currency denomunated lhabiliuies used to hedge anticipated foreign
exchange fluctuations in the value of overseas investments Where the
underly:ng net assets of the subsidiary undertaking are lower than cost
the difference is charged 1o the profit and loss account in the period

DEBTORS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Debtors and other recevables are recogmsed nally at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method less prowsion for imparment A provision for imparment of
debtors and other recevables s established when there 15 objective
ewidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the recevable The amount of the
provision 1s the difference between the carrying amount and the present
value of future cash flows The Companys debtors primarily comprise
inter-company armounts which have no fixed maturing dates and are
repayable on demand

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

The financal statements of the Company are measured using the
currency that reflects the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates ( the functional currency ) The financial staternents are
presented in sterling which is the Company’s functicnal and
presentation currency Transactions 0 foreign currencies are recorded at
the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction Monetary
assets and habilites deneminated in foreign currencies are transtated
into the funcuonal currency at the rate of exchange at the balance sheet
date

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The Companys creditors pnmanly comprise inter-company payables
which have no fixed maturing dates and are repayable on demand Inter-
company payables are recogrised inrtially at far value and subsequently
measured at amortsed ¢ost using the effective interest method
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FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

Financial guarantee contracts are ssued to banking institutions by the
Company as part of cross guarantee arrangements throughout the
Waterford Wedgwood ple Group The Company and the subsidianes
engage In ongoing financing arrangements with these banking
insututions The Company 1s a guarantor under certain of the Waterford
Wedgwood Groups facilities Under the terms of FRS 26 ' Financial
Instruments Measurement financial guarantee contracts are required to
be recogmsed at fair value at incepuion and subsequently measured as a
proviston under FRS 12 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets ' on the Company balance sheet There was no impact
on the resuit for the year




Company balance sheet

Fixed assets
Financial assets

Current assets

Debtors

Creditors (amounis falling due within one year)
Net current habiliues
Total assets less current habilives

Capital and reserves
Called up share caprtal
Profit and loss account

Shareholders’ deficit

Peter John Gowtandrs
Chairman

Wayne | Mutbeen
Drrecior

Waterford Wedgwood UK plc

Notes

2007 annual report & accounts

As at As at
31 March 2007 31 March 2006
£ Mils £ Mils
21.7 177
30.6 194
{60.3) (635)
29.7) 44 1)
(8.0) (264)
100.0 899
(108.0) (1163)
(8.0) (264)
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| Financial assets

The Cornpany's investments in its subsidiaries were as follows

£ Mils
As at 31 March 2007
Cost
At | April 2006 1926
Transiauon adjustments 47
At 31 March 2007 1879
Prowision for impairment
At 1 April 2006 (1749)
Write back of impairment charge 87
At 3] March 2007 (1662)
Net book value
At | Apnit 2006 177
At 31 March 2007 217
£ Mils
As at 31 March 2006
Cost
At | April 2005 1892
Translation adjustments 34
At 31 March 2006 1926
Prowision for impairment
At | April 2005 (1333)
Imparment charge (41 6}
At 31 March 2006 (1749
Net book value
At | Apnl 2005 559
At 31 March 2006 17.7
2 Debtors
As at As at
3§ March 2007 31 March 2006
£ Mils £ Milg
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 30.6 194
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3 Creditors (amounts falling due within one year)

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings
Other payables

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

As at As at

3t March 2007 31 March 2006
£ Mils £ Mils

60 | 632

0.2 03

60.3 635

The Company is managed as part of the Group's financial risk management procedures These objectives and policies are set out on note 24 to the
Group financial statements There s no specific foreign currency risk, iquidity nsk. credit risk or interest rate risk inherent in the Company that

differs from the objectives and policies noted

The Company does not have any cash flow, fair value or hedges of net investments

The Companys creditors comprise inter-company creditors which have no fixed maturity date and are repayable on demand

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Set out below 15 a year end comparison of book and fair values of the financial instruments by category

Fair values of financial assets and financial habilimes are as follows

As at 31 March 2007

Book value Fair value

£ Mils £ Mils

Inter-company debtors 306 306
&0 1 60.1

Inter-company creditors

The carrying value of inter-company debtors and inter-company creditors approximates to their far value

As at March 2006

Book value Fair value
£ Mils £ Mils

194 194

632 632

Interest income amounted to £1 3 million (2006 £0 3 million) and interest expense amounted to £1 | milhion (2006 £1 1 millien)

4 Share caprtal

Authonsed
220 milhon (2006 220 mullion) ordinary shares of 25p each
1605 bilkon {2006 65 bilkon) income shares of ip each

Waterford Wedgwood UK plc 2007 annual report & accounts

As at As at
31 March 2007 31 March 2006
£ Mils £ Mils
55.0 550
160.5 650
215.5 1200
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4 Share capital continued

Ordinary shares
of 25p each
£ Mis
Issued as fully paid
At | April 2006 — Ordinary shares — 181 601,769
— Income shares — 4450 138 481 454
Bonus 1ssue of 1 003,946,503 wcome shares -
At 31 March 2007 — Ordinary shares — 181,601,769
— Income shares — 5,454,084,984 454
Issued as fully paid
At | Aprit 2005 — Ordinary shares — |81 601 769
~ lncome shares — 2,758,281,366 454
Bonus issue of 1 691 857 |15 income shares -
At 31 March 2006 ~ Ordinary shares — 181,601,769
— Income shares — 4.450,138,481 45.4

Income shares
of |p each
£ Mils

445
101

546

276
169

44.5

Total
£, Mils

899
101

100.¢

730
169

89.9

In May 2005, the Waterford Wedgwood Group announced a rghts issue of 1,691 857,115 new stock units {comprising an Ordinary Share of €006 n
Wiaterford Wedgwood plc and an Income Share of [p in Waterford Wedgwood U X plc} of €006 per new stock unit to raise €101 5 million before
expenses As part of this rights issue, the Company 1ssued | 691 857,145 income shares in the form of a bonus 1ssue The net proceeds of the nights
issue of €96 7 million have been used to fund restructuning costs and for funding the working capital requirements of the Waterford Wedgwood Group

5 Profit and loss account

Asat As at

31 March 2007 31 March 2606

£ Mils £ Mils

At | April (i163) (69 1)

Profit/(loss) for the year 130 (306)

Translation of net Investments in overseas subsidianes {4.7) 34

At 31 March (108.0) (1163)
6 Audit fees

Audit fees paid to PricewaterhouseCoopers by the Company amounted to £nit (2006 £nif) Audn fees are borne by a Group company

7 Approval of company financial statements

The Directors approved the Company financial statements on 29 July 2007
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